TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Notice:
Pursuant to KRS 96.A, the TARC Board of Directors is to meet monthly. The next meeting will be held
at:

TARC’s Headquarters, Board Room

1000 W. Broadway, Louisville, KY 40203

Tuesday, September 27, 2022 at 2:30 p.m.

This meeting is also being held via teleconference as permitted by KRS 61.826.

Members of the public and/or TARC staff may watch a livestream of the meeting by going to
www.facebook.com/ridetarc; the livestream will be at the top of the page; No Facebook account is

needed. Public comments may be submitted in the chat feature, please include your name in the
chat.

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with a disability may request a reasonable
accommodation for assistance with the meeting or meeting materials. Please contact Ashlie Woods
at 502.561.5108. Requests made as early as possible will allow time to arrange accommodation.



TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Agenda - September 27, 2022

l. Quorum Call/Call to Order John Launius 2:30
a. Approval of August Meeting Minutes Board of Directors  2:35 — 1:40
Il. Staff Reports and Presentations 2:40 - 3:10
a. June 2022 Financials Tonya Carter
b. TARC monthly performance report Carrie Butler/Staff
o Update from MV
c. Presentation of Fleet Transition Plan Tim Reynolds

Presented by WSP
d. Presentation of Audited End-of-Year Financial Statement Scott Nickerson
Presented by Crowe, LLC.

M. Action ltems 3:10-3:45
a. Resolution 2022 - 24 Tonya Carter
TARC Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2022
b. Presentation of Audited End-of-Year Financial Statement  Scott Nickerson
Presented by Crowe LLC.
c. Resolution 2022 — 25 Geoffrey Hobin
Award of Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals
With Disabilities Section 5310 Program Funds

d. Resolution 2021-08 Amendment No.1 Matt Abner
Banking and Financial Services Change Order. ‘Expert AP’

e. Resolution 2022 — 09 Amendment No.1 Dwight Maddox Jr.
Ellipse Hosting and Support Services/ Fine Interface

f. Resolution 2021-43 Amendment No.2 Carrie Butler

Management Consulting Services

V. Old Business 3:45 - 4:.00
a. CLOSED SESSION TARC Board

V. New Business

VL. Chair's Report and Subcommittee Reports John Launius 4:05 - 4:10
a. Finance Carla Dearing
b. Strategic Planning and Technology Ted Smith
c. Customer Service Jan Day
d. Human Resources Tawanda Owsley

VII. Public Comment Pat Mulvihill 4:10 - 4:25



TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

VIIl.  Proposed Agenda / Procurements Carrie Butler 4:25 - 4:30
On Board Technology Request for Information
Architecture, Engineering and Planning Request for Qualifications
Marketing, Advertising and Public Relations Professional Services
Assorted Capital Projects
Employee Handbook Update to HR Committee
Board Bylaws to HR Committee
Advertising Policy to Customer Service Committee
TARC Pension Committee members
Active Procurements:

i.  Compensation and Classification Study

ii.  Renovation of Diesel Floor Trenches

ii.  Facility Wide Printing Services

iv.  Facility Wide Building Maintenance and Construction IDIQ

" T@ "o 00T

IX. Adjournment John Launius 4:30



TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

August 2022 Board Meeting Minutes

The Board of Directors of Transit Authority of River City (TARC) met on August 23, 2022 at 1:30
P.M. in person at TARC Board Room, 1000 West Broadway.

Board Members Present

In person: Virtual:
John Launius Bonita Black
Carla Dearing Gary Dryden
Dave Christopher

Jan Day

Tawanda Owsley

Ted Smith

Quorum Call
Vice Chair Dearing called the meeting to order at 1:34 P.M.

Adoption of Minutes

The motion was duly moved for the July 2022 Board Meeting minutes by Jan Day and seconded
by Tawanda Owsley. The Board of Directors unanimously accepted the July 2022 Board
Meeting minutes.

Staff Reports-

Update on Financials
Presented By: Matt Abner

Mr. Abner gave an update on Audit and end of year financials

Operational Update
Presented By: Carrie Butler
o Welcomed 11 new Coach Operators into service in August
¢ New CMAQ routes went into service August 7
e TARC awarded a competitive $7.4 million grant from the FTA for extended-range electric
buses, infrastructure, and workforce development

TARC3 Update
See PDF of MV Performance




TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Action Iltems

Resolution 2022-20 Adoption of TARC Strategic Plan
Presented by: Carrie Butler

A Resolution approving TARC’s Strategic Plan

The motion was duly moved by Bonita Black seconded by Carla Dearing and opposed by Ted
Smith

Resolution 2022-22 Excess Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance

Policy
Presented by: Carrie Butler

A resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into an excess insurance policy for
Workers’ Compensation with Arch Insurance Company for the 2022/2023 policy year with a
premium of $298,373, which will commence on September 1, 2022 and end on September 1,
2023.

The motion was duly moved by Carla Dearing and seconded by Tawanda Owsley

Resolution 2020-37 Amendment No. 1 Contract 2822 TransTrack Annual Support
Presented by: Geoffrey Hobin

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to amend TARC’s contract 2822 with
TransTrack Systems Inc. for an amount not to exceed $297,000.

The motion was duly moved by Carla Dearing and seconded by Tawanda Owsley

Resolution 2022 — 23 Microsoft Licensing with Insight Public Sector
Presented by: Dwight Maddox

A resolution authorizing the Executive Director to renew the Microsoft Enterprise Licensing
agreement with Insight Public Sector.

The motion was duly moved by Jan Day and seconded by Ted Smith

Chair’s Report
Presented By: John Launius

Public Comment
Presented by: Pat Mulvihill

Good job on keiling bus purchases interested in buying.



TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Josh Caplinger (In Person)

Mr. Caplinger stated that he lives off of St. Andrews church road. There is no TARC 3 service in
his area available for him. Mr. Caplinger stated that he is having problems getting to Doctor’s
appointments, grocery or to visit friends. In order for Mr. Caplinger to get places he has been
having to use uber and is costing him a fortune. Mr. Caplinger stated please consider that.

George Mayes Jr. (In Person)

Mr. Mayes still has questions. What is going on with TARC? Mr. Mayes stated he was at the
protest with bus drivers where they spoke on the safety issues with TARC. While at protest Mr.
Mayes was able to speak with some disabled folks which he found out that TARC 3 is still
sending out vans that are not accessible for individuals using a walker due to not having a ramp
on most vehicles. Mr. Mayes also states that TARC 3 also has safety issues. And still has one
question who checks statistics being put out?

Lillian Brents (In Person)

We also heard from ATU, Lillian Brents, regarding safety concerns. Ms. Brents expressed
concerns that TARC needs to be more proactive then reactive. Ms. Brents continues to express
concerns about gun safety. Ms. Brents also stated that there is lack of accountability and that
employees are not valued. Ms. Brents expressed we will not stop and we will get louder and
louder.

Proposed Agenda Items

Third Party Administration of Workers Compensation Services
Recycling Services/ Hazardous Waste and Materials

On Board Technology Request for Information

Facility Wide Printing

Facility Wide Building Maintenance

Rehabilitation of Garage Floor

O O O 0O O O

Closed Session

Chair John Launius makes a motion to move into closed session pursuant to KRS 61.810 to
discuss the Collective Bargaining at 3:03 p.m.

The motion to move into closed session was moved by John Launius and seconded by Carla
Dearing and accepted.

Chair John Launius made a motion to reconvene from closed session at 3:43 p.m. approved by
Tawanda Owsley and seconded by Jan Day.



TARC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Adjournment

Chair John Launius made a motion to adjourn at 3:48 p.m. This motion was duly moved by
Carla Dearing and seconded by Dave Christopher and approved by the Board.

John Launius, Chair Date



TARC Board of Directors
Financial Summary
June 2022, Fiscal Year 2022

Current Month Revenues Compared to Budget

Total Operating Revenues are over budget $296,916 (pg. 2, line 9) mainly due to Passenger
and Paratransit fares being over budget. Total Non-Operating Revenues (Subsidies) are
under budget $1,751,014 (pg. 2, line 16) mainly due to Operating Expenses being under
budget. Total Capital Contributions are under budget $333,794 (pg. 2, line 25) due to timing
of capital purchases. Total Revenues with Capital are under budget $1,787,892 (pg. 2, line
27) mainly due to timing of capital projects and Operating Expenses being under budget.

Current Month Expenses Compared to Budget

Total Operating Expenses are under budget $1,501,966 (pg. 2, line 41) mainly due to Labor,
Fringes & Benefits, Casualty & Liability, and Purchased Transportation being under budget.
Total Capital Expenses are over budget $17,171 (pg. 2, line 48) compared to budget. Total
Expenses with Capital are under budget $1,484,795 (pg. 2, line 50) mainly due to Operating
Expenses being under budget and timing of Capital purchases.

Current Month Actual Summary

Total Operating Revenues are $769,858 (pg. 2, line 9) and Total Operating Expenses are
$7,130,895 (pg. 2, line 41) bringing the net to an unfavorable balance of $6,361,037 before
Subsidies are applied. After applying Subsidies of $6,408,906 (pg. 2, line 16) TARC has a
favorable balance of $47,869 (pg. 2, line 53) for the current month before Capital
Contributions and Capital Expenses are applied.

YTD Revenues Compared to Budget

Total Operating Revenues are under budget $518,934 (pg. 2 line 9) mainly due to Passenger
Fares, Special fares, and Comp Specials being under budget. Total Non-Operating
Revenues (Subsidies) are under budget $10,065,552 (pg. 2, line 16) mainly due to applying
less Federal Reimbursement Funds-FTA due to Operating Expenses being under budget.
Total Capital Contributions are under budget $8,017,498 (pg. 2, line 25) mainly due to timing
of capital formula and 5339 fund purchases. Total Revenues with Capital are under budget
$18,601,985 (pg. 2, line 27) mainly due to applying less subsidies because Operating
Expenses are under budget and timing of capital purchases.

YTD Expenses Compared to Budget

Total Operating Expenses are under budget $10,584,487 (pg. 2, line 41) mainly due to Labor,
Fringes & Benefits, Materials, and Purchased Transportation being under budget. Total
Capital Expenses are over budget $37,019 (pg. 2, line 48) compared to budget. Total
Expenses with Capital are under budget $10,547,468 (pg. 2, line 50) due to Operating
Expenses being under budget and offset by Total Capital Expenses.



YTD Actual Summary

Total Operating Revenues are $7,862,568 (pg. 2, line 9) and Total Operating Expenses are
$89,371,657 (pg. 2, line 41) bringing the net to an unfavorable balance of $81,509,090 (pg.7,
YTD Balance tab) before Subsidies are applied. After applying Subsidies $81,509,090 (pg.
2, line 16) TARC is balanced for the year (pg.2, line 53) before Capital Contributions and
Capital Expenses are applied. This can also be seen on the bottom half of page 7 in your
Financial Statement packet.

Operating Summary

Overall after applying the Subsidies the Statement of Revenues — Expenses shows a zero
balance (pg.2, line 53) before applying the MTTF Revenue receipts or Capital year-to-date.
June MTTF budgeted receipts for revenue deposits is over budget $1,108,411 (pg. 8) for
current month. We currently have a favorable balance before capital year-to-date of
$17,011,230 (pg. 7) due to the MTTF revenue deposits being over budget, mainly due to
one capital gains tax in April. MTTF Net Profit Fees are up $3,582,028 (pg.8) and
Employee Withholdings are up $3,688,864 (pg.8) year-to-date compared to last year. After
applying capital items TARC has a favorable balance of $3,731,178 (pg.2, line 55) mainly
due to having more capital assets than depreciation expenses during the fiscal year.



Z obed

%¥E89 {216'950'8) 569'68L L1 8LV IEL'E (260'c0€) (SE1'6EL) (0£2'zr0’)) G69°682°L1 feyde Joyy adualeyiq asuadx3 / anuaasy
%00°0 0 0 0 898'LY 0 698°LY 0 lende) a10j0g 9oUdIOHIA ISUIXT / BNUIASY
%286 (89p'2pS‘0L) 891°226°ZLE  00L'620°20L  (S62'p8P°L) 909°L26°6 18°98%'8 — 891°L25CLL sasuadx3 |ejoy
%620 6104€ v20'L29TL  £v0'8S9°CL LIVIL vrL8EE’) gLe'eee’t — ¥20°129°TL sasuadxg [epded (ejo)
%0070 085t 0 085 e 0 veY 0 sjessy Jo [esods|q uo sso7
%L6°L (216'¢€e) 195'¥61°C) 0r0'L96'H1 (699'021) 601°20L'L 0zv'186 165'v6L'2L sosuadx3y uonerdaideq
%0929 966'99Z 29v'92r £2r'e69 gev'Lel GE9'9EZ 190'v.€ 19%'92Z¥ |esodsiQ uo sso7 § 1509 Juswdojaasg
%B6S°0L (28¥'vaS5°01) +¥1°956°66 159°11€'68 (996°L05°}) 298°T9's S68'0€L'L ¥¥1'966'66 sasuadx3 BupesadQ
%6+ Ze161) 028129 £689°/9v 8¥5Z PEY'ES 281'9S 028’129 sosuedxg Jayl0
%E0'0 @) 098°L 858°L 0 Lt Lt 008°L osusdx3 jselaju|
%2C6C (g2y'9l'c) 086'0vL'8L  £09'492'¢l (¥6e'cor) 166'9LL°L £09°'€5Z°L 0€6°0vL'8L uonepodsuel) peseyosing
%E0'L- L2126l 9ZF'9EL'T 169'826'C (Z51'pLL) L0'eez 688'CLL 9zb'9eL'e Amqer @ Hjensed
%98"L- 206'8L 96.'9L0°L £02'680°1 (80t'0t) €848 A4 962'910°1 saniun
%8G¥L (¥s2'280')) SgL'eGk'/ 126'0.€'9 (605'v2) SYE'6LY 0v8'v6S G81'85%"L sjeldjen
%8LL- $55'99 72T'6£9'G 9/1'904'S 609'ce ¥oT' L Lk £18'705 | 2zz'eco's SaDIAIRS
%168 (L9z's8'e) 1G0'VEL'LE  96.'888°'8C (080'v2¥) LLL198T 1£9°€60'C £S0'vEL'LE syjauag g sebuliy
%90 (£vE'662'L) 8780002 §0S'1L02°0¢ (e85'12w) 969'068'Z £L1L'69¥'T 8¥8°000'2€ Joge
sasuadx3y
%96V (586°L09'81) €98'29EPZL  L/8°094°S0L (268°28Z°L) LIV'2EL6 09S'vPy'L £98°29¢'¥T1 sanueAsy [ejoL
%S8'TE (86%°210°8) 6L2°90v'PZ  022'68€'9) (veLcee) 609665 518592 612°90v'v2 suopnquiuo feyde) |ejoL
%0070 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 de ‘snuasdy s31oudby JayIQ
%00°0 052'06 155°9Z4'E L0e'212'e 0 0 0 0 deD 'spund JUaWUBIBA0L) JJBIg
%90°€P (€22'667'0) 9g6'160'6F  £12'259°TL (€05'gLY) est' L8 056'99 Le¥'8Le'ze de) ‘v.Ld - Spund JUSWISINQWIdY |eJapad
%SGT'9L (525'899°L) zeT'88L'T 202'618 60478 9GL'THL S98'961 zeT'e8L'e ded ‘41 LI - SPUNd JUBWUIBACY |ea0]
%6501 (28¥'¥8501) ¥¥1°966°66 159°12£'68 (860vSY'1) Z98°2£9°8 ¥9L821°L ¥¥1°956'66 suonnquIuo) de) 310409 SSNUSASY |E)OL
%660} (zg5's90°01) ZTrIvLSI6 06060518 rLo1s2'1) 0266518 906'80%'9 ZrI'PiS'L6 s9NudAdY Huyesadp-uoN [eloL
%9995 1~ 25T YEY'T 9G8'€5G'L 80L°886'C zec'og Z81'59¢ $0G°LSE 9G8°€55'L SPUNJ JUBWILIBAOY) Blelg
%66'ZE (205'6£5'¢h) 0/4'800'8€  £92'69¥'GZ (L2y'eeg’t) S6E'02L'E $26'088'L 042'800'8€ V.14 - spund juswasinquiay |eJopad
%9OFE- £02'6€ £SPOrL'L 951°981L'L (g98'c) S£5'S6 0/9'L6 £SFOPL'L 4LLIN - SPUN JUBWLIBAOD [BD07]
%000 0 €95'G98'0  £99°G98'0G 0 808'820'F 8088207 £95°598'0S pajeIapa -suonnqLIuod 4L LN
%619 (ve6'816) 205°18€8 895298°L 916°962 TVeTLY 859'692 Z0S°18€°8 sanuaaey Bunessdo
%0081~ 269°L¥) 000'69 £69'90¢2 (FeL'y) eIr's 6.9 000'59 @JUBINSU|-SBLBA0TDY [EJOL
%blTL- gveze 00c'e8tL 815'502 69¢'6 QIZ'SL ¥9'vZ 00£°€8L sanuaasy Aouaby JOUIQ
%ETE- 19102 000'+29 2914h9 L91'2 000'28 191'vS 000'¢29 anusAsy BulsiusApy
%00°001 (000'05}4) 000051 0 0 0 0 000051 sjejpadsg dwod
%SG EL (g6L'cre) S00'962'L L0Z'€8S"L 089'e¢ SeLLoL G18'681 G09'96.'L (919 pue gdn “1JoN) senusasy sieg [e1dadg
%91 8- 9¢2'59 005'508 9EZ' 118 Z8t'09L (000'68) 8L 005'508 saue4 ysueseied
%684 (vge'sLe) 160'261'y [WAIY- 87 266001 6b1'82¢ L20'62Y 160°281' seJey sebusssed
SINUAIADY
Bujuleway  (3abpnq 1apun) yobipng enay (39Epnq Japun) yobpng 1enoy 336png jejoL uonduosag
abejuaalag Jabpnq Jeap 1abpnq JaAp — ZTAd
aJep-0j-Jed A |Bastq YIUOW Jusungy

2202 Jeo) [edsid ‘ZgoZ ounp

suopnquIuo ) jeyden yum - sesuadxg - SNUBAIY JO JUBWIEIS




¢ obed

(192'618'2) (080°'¥ 1) jobpng 0} pasediwoa asualaymq € ]
e
%.L6'8 (Loz'sya‘z) L50°vEL'LE  961'888°8Z (0g0'v2t) LLL'29G°T 1£9'€60°Z 160'veLLE lejol o€ |
62
%S5 02 (511's520°1) 290°Z€Z'S 188951y (91reLl) ErY'50¢E £20'9Z1 290°2€2'S sjjouag uogesuadwo) [ejo) 82 |
%80'82 (015°29) 18€°0t2 L28°TLL (geg'e) oLz'ol G/8'CL L8e'0re seouasqy pled J9Ui0 22 |
%8904 (6z0'cZe) G21'880°C 9v1'598°L (182'c02) 820'S.L (e9s'82) S21'880°C uofjedep 92 |
%1902 (580'852) XAMATA 8€2'766 805°CL} 0 80G°ELL £ZE°2ST'} AepijoH 62 |
%68 1€ (165'928) £81°159°L ze9've)’L (96.°68) S0Z'7LL 10¥'8T £81°'159'1 aAea yoIS 72 |
€2
ec |
%89'9 (980°022°}) S66°105°9Z  606°LEL'VE {+99°¥62) 892°292'C #09°296°L G66°105°9Z sjyeusg g abuny jejo) 2|
%02 0€ (5562) 0052 Shi'l (v02) ¥0z 0 005°C sabuud Joy10 02 |
%S v ger'LL 000°222 £81'882 ] 18€°01 ovr'ol 000°2.2 douemo(lv Buio|d YJom '8 wuojiun 61 |
%L9°G9 €86'7LC L 000'058‘} £86'790°€ yOe'L €9L'vS1 19v'SS) 000058} uogesuadwo) s,1940M 8} |
%9Z'ST (voir'ot) 000°0% 96862 (02v'61) 0 (02¥'61) 000°0% uswihojdwaun Hiamuay 2} |
%9961 (226'0¢) pPS's5L 196'%Z1 (29¢'2) 296'Ct SBS'0} ¥PS'SSL eaue.nsu| Angesiq 9} |
%S €l (085°€1) 0v0'101 05v'/8 (g90'}) ozr's rasio) 0v0‘L01 asueinsu| 3 S |
%vL 9L (512'68) 886°€GE E1L'v62 (668'1) 66762 009'22 886°€GE sue|d [eyusQ ¥} |
%r9'TY (162'cr) 2€5°10L vz'8s (ve6'c) 68c'e S6e'y L£5°101 9duBINSU] 248D UOISIA €1 |
%S0°€l (899'12£'1) LyR'60G'0L  621'8EL'6 (oze'vel) 0EP'2e6 ¥0Z'8t7L 1¥8'6050} leaibung @ [edipaly [eydsoH izl |
%ELZL (698'4¥Z'1L) 122’2920l  2SELLO'6 (92¢'6%) 85€°198 z86'118 Leez'zgz'ol uoisuad M
%182 (eev'zee) 8l£'8v8'T §68'629'2 (291'€€) 90S'¥¥Z 6e0'Lle 8LE'RYS'C voId oL
Bujureway  (39bpnq Japun) yabpng lemdy (32Bpnq J8pun) jabpng [enyoy 19bpng [ejo ] uondiuosaqg
abejuasiad j3abpnq Jan0 18bpnq 1aA0 LZAd
Jjeq 0} JedA YIUo | JuUaIn
(815'v2£) (666'009) 106png 0} pasedwos 2ouaiepig 6 ]
8
%8E'9 (815'v2£%2) 0L6'ZEZ’LE  Z6E'GS8'VE (666'009) 6EL'961°C 0rL'S65'2 016°2¢2°L8 iejol 2 |
9
%80°82 (o15'29) L8E'0rT L18°2L1 (gee'e) oLz'ol §28'Z1 Lee'ove s9JUasqy pled B0 S |
%8901 (620'€22) S/1'880°2 orl'so8’L {(162'¢02) 8z0'sLl (€92'82) S/1'880°2 uonesep v |
%1902 (g80'852) €ze'zse’L 8£Z'Y66 80S°ELL 0 80S°€HL £2€'252°1 Aepijoy € |
%68 1€ (195'925) €8L°169°L Zeo'vel’l (862'c8) S0TvLL 20v'8T £8L°159°} aAeaT YIS 2 |
%90 (eve'e62'l) 8/8'000'C€  G0S°L02°0E (€86°Ler) 969°068°C €11'69¥'C 818'000°Z€ JogeT Joeug [l |
Buiureway  (3s6pnq Japuf) jobpng |enjoy (32bpnq s2pun) jobpng femoy 19bpng |ejol uondudsag
abejuasiad 3196pnq J9A0 19bBpnq 18AQ ZZAd
ajep-03-Jed A |easl4 YIuop Juaing

ZTOT JedA |edsid ‘Zgoz sunp

JoqeT [0l




y abed

LLLCI'VEL LE9°Z21'981
098°'8ve'ssL 1£0'086'8L
£09°0E¥'9L 658'8Y2'SL
(ri181'y) 8L1IEL'E
ZIB'ELY'6S +65°Z61° 201
L¥6'92€ 089'92¥'C
Z61°L85'€E 28€'600'68
000'8 00008
00£'v10'C 00v'622'L
£68'955'L L00'SY9'L

0 0

889'262'€ €LEIEL'E
L8T'ELS'Y 6EL'LY8'E
089'992'¢L 220'900'S

0 0

8E5'29T 169'LEL

L2 Ad ec Ad

Aynb3 % so|

lqer [eyor
Aynb3 jejo)

Bujuie psulejay Jea) Joud
sBuieg paulejey

Aynb3

g1 JuaLnd [EjoL

qel juaung 18yio
suoRnquiuoy [elides pauseaun
suofnesadQ o1 ang

sebeuweq ¢ Anlu) - sanlasay
SUDNOL ¢ SI9YIIL pawapasufn
e xe] paniaoy
uolesuadwoy) SUBLINIOAA PRJBLINST
salijigel JJoJAe pansoy

sa|qeAeqd aped]
1gaq el yoys
192g wiay Buoq

sajljiqel Juaungd

|endeD 19 saasesay ‘sanljiqel]

LLLPEL'PEL 1£9'221°081
SE'991'92 ¥95'286'6L
915'050°0€) 6£0°S9'9€E1
260'6LL 865'VEL
¥29'¥26 052086
- 0

21E'8EL°2L 962'685'8)
910'856'2 Lev'ees's
TLL'LL0'9L €82'02L'8L
€£9'221'22 GlLl'ov9'eT
299'9LL 009'062
168'912°902 £09'2£9'912
806'vG 1L Tre'esl
SO¥'0ZF'L SO¥'0zh'L

0 0
202'8v5'LE 086'62¥'22
891°21€'0} 7656870}
ZEY'SEP'0Z) 69.'82v'62)
Lvy'eSL'eY 266'98Y ‘617
¥29'281'E y29'28L'e
[TV N4 0gl'v8l
25¢'L12 08L'v8L
PLL162'8S 288'000'90}
€19'80L'L TrsLee’L
000'08 00008

0 R4

128'262' Ly 8€5'221'V6
282'290°2 ¥82'019'2
65P'ZYL'T T86'V62C

1Z Ad TZTAd

Sj988Y [BI0L
sjassy paxid 19N

uoneioaidaq ejol

do swdinb3g JoyiQ 1daq pajeNwNooy
1dQ - dx3 9IyaA sdaq pajenuInooy
1509 Juawdolara( Jdag paleINWNIdY
Juawdinb3g saYiQ 4daq palenwnosy
juswdinb3 oo 1daq paieINWINY
sayoeo?) Jdaq pajeinuwinooy

sbuippng udsQ peajejnwnooy

puen Jda@ pajenwnooy

uone|saidag paje|nwnooy ssa

sjessy pexid |ejoL
Bupessd- Juswdinbg o4O
Bunelsado - dx3 ajosaA
sjson) wawdopAasq
Jaswdinbg Jayio
wawdinbg as0

S8YoB0))

sBulpiing

pueq

SJISSY paxi4d

S}9s88y Jal1Q [ejoL
dIM B sanQg P 2ouensu)| predaid
S}OSSY 19410

S}9SSY JUalIng [ej0]
salddng @ sjeuajen
jueIS Woug ang
ajqeAsIvay 1sase|
9QBASI9Y SIUN0JoY
SJUBWISAAU| WIS} WOYSG
swis)j ysey B ysep

$)9SSY JUBLNY

sjassy

TTOZ Jea |edsld ‘gzog sunp

joayg asuejeg



G abed

{suewesueyUa AJUNDDS pue Jamod JUpAIe Yuawdinba gy ‘qeys)

B) SPUN) GEES pue ejnwio} [eyided 10) sasuadxe |e)des Jo BuiLy 0} anp Ajuiew £Z2'6E 1 9% 186pNq Japun S| 4D 'V.1d - SPUNJ juswssInquiay jeispad

Asenuer Ut yojew {e00) 10§ Spuny 81ElS B} BuiAeoel 0) anp AlUIBW ZGZ' bEb 2 16PN JBAO SI - SPUNL JUSWLIBAOS) SIS .,

1ebpng Japun Bujaq sasuadxa Gunessdo pue yojew aje)s Buiaedas o} anp Ajuiew £05'6£5 2L 196pNQg Jopun SI ] 4 - SPUNS JUSWBSINGWIRY |BJspad

€ cz'66'9% ded Vi - spund JuewssINGUISY [RJepad
< ZET'PEP'TS - SPUNY JUSLILIBACD B)BIS

4 £05'665'218 VL1 - SPUNS JUSWESINQUISY 210Pe
4 s6c'cres sere leeds

* 9€4'Go$ se.ey isueneseq

-‘v 8c'GLe4 soue) 1abuassed

186png 9¢6°L60°61S > 1BNOV £12°259°21S deD ‘V.Ld - SPUNd JUSWIISINQUIdY [e1epad
196png 0L2'800°8E$ > 1EMOV £IZ'69P'STS V14 - SPUNJ JUSWASINQUIDY |eIapad

196png £95'598°05$ = [EMOY £95'G98°05$ JLLIN

B T
. . S wtm e.._ sjeiaedg dwo)
u dep ‘anueaey seioueby Jeyi
%%M_.MMM senueasy AosueBy 10410
’ sm_oa%mmw. BOUBINSU[-301IBACIBY
zez'eat’z 00008 l deg 41 W - SPUN JUBLLILISAS) (8207
Moo“.““% l BnusAsy Bujsipeapy
cmnu_.mhwwm I seled Jsueljeied
%mm“.uw%r_ﬂ._‘— I ALLW - SPUNJ JUSLIUIBAOL) [E507]
mcc.waww..mmm_— I_ (93% puE sdn "Yon) sesed Jisues] jeveds
jovi7: E— "0 """ o0 s
suvose'c O " 10 s
s sair pp—
jeBpng (enjoy =

SONUaAaY 9jeQ 0} JEDA

“SIEMBURI 10BJU0 O} 8NP Alutew 8¢ Sz 196PNg Jopun 1 saued |esds

aLi

sasuadxe [eyded Jo Buiwy o anp Ajuiew £05°'8L+E 196pNa JapUN S dyD ‘W1 - SPUNd JUSLWESINqQUIRY (eieped

126png Japun Buieq sasuadxa o} anp Ajulew |/ +'€£8' | $ 19BpNQ Japun §1 14 - SPUN4 JUBISSINqUIRY |BISPSS ,

WO

4 cos'8Lp$ ded Vi - SPund JuewBsINGUISY |eJepe
4 1v'ee8'1$ VL - SPUNS JuswasINqUISY [B1apad

., Zer'091$ seley ysueneled
.-_. 256'001$ seuey Jebusssed

1abBpng GBE'0ZL°ES > 1BMIV $Z6°'988°1$ V.1 - SPUN JUBWIISINQUIRY |eIapad

% % % % % % o

196png 808'8.L0'V$ = [NV 808'8L0°YS JLLW

%
o@v
%

oo ®©0c oo

£M's
89
siz'sh
o'vz W
000'28
1'%l

ose’s9 [

esy'Ly

zav'L. L
S£6'56 "
o9'ie [N
SEL'Iok
Sig'eel
95L'ZLE
sog'osl I
Z81'502
vos'iot
811'82¢
0'szy EEEE—

jeBpng  |enjoym

de) ‘enusasy serousty JoyiQ

sprlaedg duon

de ‘spuny juewualeAos ayelg

eoURINSU|-SeIeA0D0Y

sanusaey AoueBy ey i0

enuoAey Bujsjueapy

deg ‘14 - Spung jusliesinquiey |e1epo
(ooo'es) sese jjsueneleg
ALLI - SPUNJ JUBWILISAQE [€307]
(210 pue gdn "on) sesed Jsuri) [Epedg
ded ‘411 W - SPUN JUSWeADS) jE00T]
SPUNY JUSLILLISAGS) MRS

seJiq JaBuesseq

$INUBAZY YIUOW Juang
220T JedA |edsld ‘ZZoz sunp

196png “sA anuaAsy [enjoy



g abed

saseyound [e)ided Jo Bulwy e o) anp Ajulew /1.5'cgZ$ 1e6pnq Jepun ale sasuadxg uonetoaideq ,
Safeusd pue SINOY snuaAal o) anp AJulew £Z§'9/ ¥'s$ 196pNg Japun s| UCHELOdSURL] PISEYDING ,
S9SeVIOU| DAIDSDI PUE SJUSWIBINGSS 0} 8NP Alulew /' Z6L$ 196png Joao s1Ayiqe B Aiensed

s9ijddns pue sjeusiew asueusjuiR PUE [eN} [3SaIp 0} anp Ajuew $$Z°Z80' 1§ 196pna Jopun ale sieuale

£86'v12'1L$ J2A0 Buieg uolesuadoD sJeMIom A 1esyo pue JeBpng Jepun Buleq |l Aeplioy ‘aAee] YoIS ‘|eaipaw ‘uojsuad 0} anp Aluew L9Z'SHa‘Z$ 186pNq Jepun ese syeueg ¥ ebuld ,

4 215°cezg sesusdxg uopepeidag
;-' £ZP'9/9'G$ uocneNOdsUEly PaseydInd
§ 1Lv26isaucen g Aenseo

& voz'180'18 sieusien

@ 19z'svezs swouse g by

@ragvicegioceiimor i eve's6z'L$ 10081 100ua

%05, 000,, %00, %5, 900, %0 , 00, %, 05/, %00, 05, %3 , 00, 035, %9y, 05, %0y,
200, 2003004 00 00 200, 001 o0 ' o 20 ' g0 gy g

e "0 % e 8z > o
. m.m sjessy 4o [escds|( uo ss07
“M“”M esuadxy jseseu|
Mﬂﬂ.—n“cv esuedx3z Jeyig
nu..«uem.nun“v (esodsi(] uo ss07 g 1807 Jwewdojeas
7 R
w..ﬂww%.«« Aqer § Aensen
s
m@-.uwnnn.o k|
\r.u.vm.h.v_ﬂro.err sesuedx3 uopepeideg
oeaonas L05'FRE'T) uopepodsuel| peseyaing
150'pE2'1e
96298882 sjjeusg 1 eBuyiy

818'000'ZE J0qET 15631
§08'10.4°08 a1 0000

3eBpng femoys | )
sasuadxg ajeq o) JeaA

aLAa

1jjeuad pue sinoy enusasl o} 8np Ajulew 52 'S9F$ 186png Japun si uoneyodsues| paseysnd ,
Sjuswiedep snowea 1oy diey Asziodwal 0y anp Alurew g09°€E$ 196pNQ JOAD S| S90IAI8S
UDHEIEA PUE XDIS ‘[EINPBW O} 8NP Ajulew 080'v2+$ 1eBpng Jepun eJe sjyaueg g sbuud ,

W3

* +6E'€oP$ uoneHodsuel L paseydind
4.< 609'€E$ saolates

4 080'b2p$ sweues 2 BBy

‘v 666'009% J00ET [BJ0L ‘v €86'1Z¢¥$ Joge aig
e S,
0 $IBSSY JO |ESOS|(] UO S50
ver
"u esusdx3 jseaeju|
ses've |
vEL'YY
MM“MM L esuedx3 Jeyjo
-vmmw.«n: | fGaaen v nenseg
Eo.m'mﬁunu |esodsig uo ss07 1§ 3509 JuswdoleAsq
nﬂwﬂq l M
ma—.m%uﬂ.—vmo sosuadxg uopeposideq
266'01L") — uojjepodsuel) peseysing

LLL298'T
1£9'E80' siouog g obuly

T v ———

308png jenjoy s
sasuadx3 yJuop Jualing

TZOZ 1edA |29s14 ‘g2z sunt

19bpng "sA sesuadx3 jenjoy



Nd 8¢}
[AAATAALS

1 obed

|ogZ'LL0'2LS

18778501 $

0$

lzs'ep9'oes

801°986'c$
9sL'ogL’'L$
00€£'990'G$
98/'61£'6%
221'180'L 1S

(1zs'ev9'ocs)

£956'698'05$

(060'605°18%)

159'L/€'68%
895'298'2$

111'G65'22$

L8¥'¥8G0LS

0€Z'LLO'LLS

18¥'v85°0LS

pPooY

[eyded a10jaq (ssoT)/utes) joN

sajpisqng [ej0)
suoiNquIuo) 8.l
aleys [eo07 411N
(d33D) se pesn aq 0) sJe||op eNWIOA |eJapad L0ES

YVSSHO

SIUVD
se|p|sang

saIpIsgng a4ojaq (ssoT)utes jaN
suonnquon) pasaolddy 411N

411N 810}9q (sso)uted JoN
sasuadx3 buneladQ
sonuaAay Bunesadp

sosuadxg JOAO S2NUAADY [en)OY

10 [eyde) a10j0q souRjeq 9|qRIoAR) B Sey aunp

(g -B6d) Aq Jepunyiang ale syisodag anuaaay 41 LN
(1L 8wy ‘z '6d) Aq JepunieAaQ ale sasuadx3 |2joL

(gL auy ‘z "6d) Aq Japun/4aaQ ale |ejden a10j8( sehuaasy |B10]

alA 196png 03 pasedwo) [enjoy

220 Jed) |eosly ‘zz0g aunr

Aewwng ajeq o) Jeaj)



MassTransit Trust Fund (MTTF) Revenue Deposits

Deposit to Budget Difference FY 2022

FY 22 FY 22
Month Actual Deposits Budget Deposits Difference YTD Total Current Month YTD
July $4,416,524 $4,263,320 $153,204 $153,204 3.59%
August $4,516,464 $4,049,642 $466,822 $620,026 11.53% 7.46%
September $5,708,766 $4,744,809 $963,957 $1,583,983 20.32% 12.13%
October $4,035,303 $3,821,270 $214,033 $1,798,016 5.60% 10.65%
November $5,069,943 $4,823,684 $246,259 $2,044,275 511% 9.42%
December $6,581,965 $4,963,520 $1,618,445 $3,662,720 32.61% 13.74%
January $6,549,774 $4,589,049 $1,960,725 $5,623,445 42.73% 17.99%
February $4,003,609 $4,233,049 ($229,440) $5,394,005 -5.42% 15.20%
March $5,323,468 $4,173,450 $1,150,018 $6,544,023 27.56% 16.50%
April $13,687,504 $5,781,232 $7,906,272 $14,450,295 136.76% 31.80%
May $5,354,175 $3,901,651 $1,452,524 $15,902,819 37.23% 32.23%
June $5,855,841 $4,747,430 $1,108,411 $17,011,230 23.35% 31.45%
TOTAL $71,103,336  $54,092,106
MTTF Revenue Deposits - Actuals
LOUISVILLE METRO REVENUE COMMISSION
TARC LICENSE FEE TRANSACTIONS
June June YTD YTD Difference Percent
2022 2021 FYE 2022 FYE 2021 Amount Changi
Receipts
Employee Withholding § 3816454 & 3,501,282 52,969,045 § 49,280,181 & 3,668,564 7.49%
Individual Fees (10) 355 2782 3,654 (8725 -23.86%
Net Profit Fees 2,075,128 4,847,027 46,401,213 14,819,185 3,582,028 24.17%
Interest & Penalty 41,247 31,412 683,143 492 839 195,304 39.63%
Totai Collections $ 5932818 $  5470,076 72,061,162  $ 64,595859 § 7,465323 11.56%
Investment Income ] 3118 & g24 14978 ¢ 7816 & 7.062 88.22%
Total Receipts $ 5935934 & 547,000 72,076,161 $ 64603.776 § 7.472,386 11.57%
Disbursements
Collection Fee ¥ 80092 & 73,846 972825 &  B72,043 = 100,782 11.56%
Total Disbursements $ 80,083 & 73.846 972,825 $ 872,043 § 100,782 £4.56%
Due Mass Transit $ 5855841 §  5397,154 74,403,336 § 63,731,732 § 7,371,604 14.57%
Less Previous Payments B5,247.495 58,334,578 5,012,817 11.85%
Payable To Trust Fund 5855841 5 5,397,154 § 458,687 8.50%

page 8

TCARTER\BUDOBWMTTF Financials June FY 2022

9/22/2022



6 9bed

2202/ve/S panoax3/panoidde sem 00-2202-AM xxs

1.202/1/L peInoax/panoidde sem 0Z0-1Z20Z2-AM ««

asn [m DYV 0s azijyn 0} jou pajdo YQdIM - 0202/.2/S Pamndax3/paroidde sem 210-0202-AM «

(G61°GE8°0L) 8GH'8€Z'LE 8.2'25£°09 £96°20¥'02 089°2¥8'0Z VSLLWWEY  2L0PP6LLL [ejoL
0 9/£'€62'8Y 9/€'€62'8Y sV
(601'226'8) G68'L€2'8L 206'850°C1 98.'GlLE'6$ 889'v.€'LT »VVSHAD
(98e'cL6°L) £95°000°¢ - L21°280°L) 089'/¥8'9Z LSLLPEY  800'9.2°CH «STAUVO
2202 Ad 196png sa 2202 Ad aouejeg 220Z Ad 120T Ad 0202 Ad aleys
2202 Ad [enjoy dlA 1ebpng Bujureway alA lenjoy [en)y fenjoy JuvL
e)aQ

9YV1 10} 921n0g Buipung awi] auQ & pue A|JuQ Spun4 JUaWASINguIIdY



0% 0eyo ejgnog

0% 0% leens
(08’ 165'913) (v08'165'a1%) soeya ejgnog
0% (r08'165'81L5) (r0B'165'81$) ledioud 311N
Jepun (089'ZZS'1$) £90'902 1§ 1endeD 411N
Jepun y0g'BHE'TLE {B11'559'92¢) selpisang (210pe]
Jepun (28%'985'01L$) 259'LLE'68S sesuad3
1en0 (31£°60E'Z$) {9:9'058°L 18} senueney
1en0 (£21°690'218) {ezz'c91 128} 4LIN
jeBpng sa |enjoy dxgjaey Jeep Wwenny

0] $

wnowy peleBpng £95'598'05  §
(=j01ans pepesu Buneledo 295'698'05 8
YoBi (B30] (aydeD TEGBGOL'T H

LN ger'Leses &

295'698'05% £95'598'05$ £€95'598'05$ 6v2'690'6¥S JLLIN WOYS MYHA ONILYYIO §Od Q33N
vi2'vel'ss £61'B6E'ZES Z9D'9ED'9VS 816°199'07$ 891°'380'7 1S BS8'YPE'LTS eaugjeg 411 W Bupuz
100'€58 PLLNZLS %EL'L 8£2'589'V0S 284'T€9'Y0S v98'E96'c9$ z69'as'6ss Ieydeg/Bupeledo |gjo)
(896'6528) (089°225" 1) %L Lt £08'50L'LS 1£8'96' 1§ £p5'8Z2'e$ BEY'BSRS apys 1eydeo J1 1N
69B'Z1ES YSY'Yre'es %0L'E 5/8'6/8'29% 906'999'29% 1Z¥'SEL'098 £52'L65'89% esuedx3 Bunaiedo 16N

(caL'168'0928) (1sz'9e0'PES) (ezz'0ze'ses) (5e2'08¢'629) vLol8ns
888'204'28 601'226'8$ %000 (982'518'68) (p29'8LH'9LE) (s68‘282'B1S) 0% Buipung yysey0
(000’0028} 98e'e1a' LS %00°0 (221280 LLS) (221 28E'019) (£95°000'€15) (089'2v8'928) Buipung PY SIUVD
18518115 Shv'eBs’ LS %262 (818°886'G$) (oov'oLL'28) (592'Z86'L8) (550'685'28) wawesinquiiey esuadx eiqify3 jeyded
(00s'1e€'2$) (287'rBS'OLS) %6501 £59'LiE'00s L51'€04'06% vb1'056'66% 886'C86'488 asuedxg Bugmisdo |eio)
(£88'701$) (Ze1'PS1E) %6.'v2" £89°20v$ 0252258 028'1298 GZE'056% esuedx3 18410
(z¢) (28) %EQ'D- 859'/$ 098'L$ 098'28 80vZe$ esuedx3 Iselel)
(e80'228'L$) (£2v'947'58) %ZZ 62" L05'P92'€LS 065'2r1'SLE 0£6'07L'81$ LET'LIS'PLS uoyepodsuel) peseyo.ng
28v'28 Liv'2BLS %e0°L 268'826'28 0ev'926'28 9ZY'9EL'TS 0bg'002'e$ Aunqerpeiyensen
£06'8$ 206'84$ %98} €02'560'LS 008'986% 962'910'18 009'er6$ senn
(B21'st48) (s2'280'1$} %8S FL- 1£6'0/€'9% oLL'9LL'LS G81'85H'L8 991'950'0$ selddng g |ausiBly
(vav'1s) $S5'99% %811 927'504'S% 0bZ'104'SS 2TZ'6£9'sS 992'G98'v$ seoneg
(1z8'816'1S) (980'04L'L8) %89'9" 606'1€L'V2S 082'059'92% §66'105'9Z$ €E1'pro'ees UOISUB/BIBHEMMNEBH
(eps'6EL'19) (521'S20'1$) %5G°02" 288951V 0E'962'SS 290'262'63 ¥8E°201'G$ AepEPISAoHBA

:s)jouag abuu 4
(zre'pBs'1S) (eve'e6z'18) %807~ $05°102°0€$ LbE'96Z'ZES 8¥8'000'2€$ 650'996'82$ Joqe eAq

sesusdx3 Bupaledo

100'ESS pL2'12L8 %EL'L 8£2'580°%98 182'269'p08 +96'€06'€0$ 269'95165$ senuessy |0l
{r1i'vee'ss) (y08'165'8L%) (vog'1esets) (0se'z18'21$} [} (88c'009'E1$} Iediould 411K
§1€'188 (e98'02+9) %EY'LE- 269'e928 z2e'zees 005'7BES zee'zees SQOf° 0}, SSE90Y-SPUN 'qUISY [848pSS
0% Z62'v88'Z$ %6192 801'986'c$ 801'886'cS 9G8'E0L'LS 25 LE0" 1S SPUN UBWIWEADD oIS
£60'5SS £68'258 %59'P68T £68'658 008'v$ 000'2% SYE'ES yseaeiul 411N
269'660'5$ 0£T'LL0'LLS %St LE 9EE'E0L' LIS Y89'EPY'S9S 904'260'YS$ 2e2'1EL'E98 suclasiod JLIN
169'1618 1691718 %00'8L2 169'902$ 000'55% 000'59% ozy'oLHS BOUBINSU) - SBUBACDOY [BJOL
(252'19) ore'eTs %blTL 8p5'S0Z$ 00€'c128 00£'€81$ 888'8L28 senueney fousby Jeuio
03 291'02$ %ETE 291'vbos 291'vv98 000'¥29% 291'PEDS Suisiuenpy
0% (00D'051$) %000 0% 0% 000'05L% 00084 1S JeuEyg
Z15'98$ (868'€H2%) %8G'EL- 20Z'€5S"L$ 569'99K' LS $09'08L'L3 SB0'LLL'LS seled feloads
861'1S% (879'60E$) %L25'G- 6V6'252'5$ 15L'102'S 265'295'SH 180'80%'S xoqeses

I8J ZZT Ad SA Png ZZ Ad sA Png ZZ Ad SA sonueaey wc_«l..wﬁo

1BMIDY 22 Ad 1enjoy 22 Ad (8M2Y 77 Ad
868'7¥8"L2$ 8S8'Pv8 L2 BOV'BEO'VLE 69¥'8E0'7 LS oous|eg JLIW Bupubag
Jenjoy 31vILSa l3asana IvnLOv 2202/62iL

b UBIHYS 22Ad Z2Ad Z2Ad 12Ad 6819 1efqo Ag 1e6png



¢ lidIHX3

S79'0£6'0V$

- Buipunod

Lr0'001L$
#09'0€8°0V$

pueH uo
yseo [enjoy

299'9ev'ov$ sse|) 108[qO Ag 196png o} yoegq sall ,
299'9¢v'or$ 2202/0€/9 Jo Sse sjoog uo aouejeg [ejoL

1¥8'668°6$ Anp ul paalanal s1disdsay anusasy aunp

odvienp y/v 411N

(r20'Z8¢%) U91B N %0Z UO 9|qeAIsoay |enden

L¥0'00L$ }salelu) @ do

758°298°0v$ 411N ul eauejeg Buipu3 yyog sunp

Bununooosy
[eniooy

Heaq - 2¢0C Ad 104 daduejeg 411N



220z ‘L2 ¥39N3Ld3S
31vadn TYNOLLYYIdO ¥IaNILd3S SHOL23INIa 40 advod

..L\...... Jguow

)




Bunesw |leH

UMO] G Jou}sSI pue ‘Uie} 821n0sal

O10r ‘e|doad 104 s}eans

Buipnoul sjusaAs yoeauno
AJlUNWILIOD |BloASS papuspy

Jels O¥vL Bunjiom-piey
8y} ejeiqaleo 0] p|ay IN0Y009
99)ILWOo)) saNIANoY askoldwg .

paJa)sIullpe SBUIdJeA
dINOD L. pue sjoys nj gzl
pue ‘SIoOpuaA usazop e JSA0 Ylim
‘seafojdws ¢ ul | Aq pepuspe

Ae(q ssau|opA DHYL paziuebi) .

sjuedioiied

0G Uey)] alow wol} yoeqpas)
paAl@oal ‘Juwng Aujiqo
Joliowo] DHVL, 8y} pejsoH

“UONILIAN
ayvo4d 1SVl 3H1 3ONIS

S1HOITHOIH




HIARNQ DawL

SANONAZY 31Va

piemy
3SO¥ S,WsSUNOL SJIASINO]
10} pajeulwou spjouAay

Lo aje( JojeladQ yoeo)d

1|us)
uolneonp3 pue Bujulel |
IYVL ul suonesado
Buuemod jo08loid

Jejog Jo} paziubooay .

3|IASINOT J8)ealr)
ul uoneuodsuely pue
ysuel) BuldA0D Jeuigom
2lliAsino Ajunpoddo,
Sjslid ssauisng Ul OHVL
pajusasaidal Ja|ng suie)

FTTIASINOT

u x_..h___?_bhmdkmo ‘.

“T"ONILIIN
ayvo4d 1Sv13HL 3ONIS

S1HOITHOIH



wmusze 90/ VG

ECAAw TTAAW [TAAW OCAd®™ 61AA
unf Aepy dy 1B g9

diysiopry ysueneied

uef 29Qg AoN 00O dog Eny g

0

000°01
000°0Z
000°0¢
000°0¥

JeaA S|yl ‘UIUoW SIYL

NLES

atA

00008
00009

ECAd e TTAA® [ZAA® OCAd® 6IAd

ung Aep Iy Iy Q94 uer 93q AoN 00 dog Sny ng

[ _ 0
-’- - 000°00C
= 000'00%

. _ 000°009

\ | 000008

drysiepry paxIg

N0G6

aia
0000001
0000021

OV L oYY

Jea\ 1se YIUoN syl

d3aNIgINOD

mies NG 8C
Alyuop
LISNVY1VdVvd

e AVLG
Alpuopy

31Nn0d a3xid

dIHSY3AI] 1SNONV




€ZA4® ZZALW |ZAJE OZAJE
unp Aey idy Jey ge4 uepr sag AoN PO deg Bny np

UL

SOIIIAl X001 / S)UepIody 8|gejusisid

00

]

3
0e
oe
oy

0's

L

€TAIm  TTAIW  ITAIm QT Adm
ung Aey dy I Qo4 wer oseQ AON PO deg Sny g

I

AOA SIRPIIY [B)0],

=
©

E€ZAdEm ZZAdm lgAd® OZAdm
unp Aey iy e Qo4 uer oag AoN PO dag Bny np

T

AOA SUBPID9Y 8jqeiuanald

AN %EE L+ - AN %9¢- -
@ .V WIA%ZP- w —\
alA Alyiuopy
S3ATIN M00L / SLNIAIDOV F19V.LNIATUC

AN %28- _\ @ ATA %8+ @ N
WA %92

alA Alqiuopy

V1Ol SIN3AIOJV AL3dVS

ATA %08- AN %Ee-
N. N WIA% L~ o —\
alA Alyiuopy
SLN3AIOJV FT9VLNIATYd ALIIVS

Al34VS




€TA TTAJW [TAJW 0ZAd® 6IAd
ung Aepy idy Iepy qog uer 99 AoN 10 dog Sny [np

I

0/, QUIL] -U() JISuenBIe

%09

%0L

%08

%06

%001

€CAd  TTAdm [TAA® (OTAd®m 6TAd
ung Aey 1dy ey go] uef 93q AoN 100 dog Sny np

|
i
|

i

1 |
|
i

g ]
i

% SWILL-UQ PaX1q

%09

%0L

%08

- %06

%68 wnice  Jol8

dlA Ajqiuop
LISNVA1VHVd
%V 8. e /09 GL
diA Alqiuopy

341N0¥ a3Xid

dONVINJO4¥3d JNIL-NO LSNONV




P~

[72¥) ZZA4E TZA4W OZAIE

uni  Aey  ady RN N34 4Bl 102G aoN 1O dag By gnp

- - g o000
oso
00'L
os'E
o'z
0%’
SJ3p1Y 000°T / s1urejdwod e
£2Ad TZAAME TZAAW OFAAB 6TAS U
un Aew ady e Q@4 uef 330 AON PO dis By gy
[S— x ; a
L | oot
| 00z
00t
oor
s
009
004
wuﬂ_m_ﬂEOU lisuedjeled -
ETAd TTAAM TZAIE 0ZAINE GIAIM
uny Aew Jdy  IPN G324 UCF 33Q AON 130 das dny nf
]
[+ )14

I

sjuiejdwo) ainoy paxig

AN %L2- = AIA %0¢2- F " F
F —\ WIA %L~
ala Alpuony

SY3IAIY 000°L / SLNIVIdNOD

AN %ES- —\ —\ .v AN %99- m N N
WIN%9C+

alA Alyyuop
LISNVILViVd

e JOL G PLE
dlLA Alyiuopy
31N0¥ d3Xid

SLNIVIdINOD FJIAHFS 43NOLSND 1SNONV




Z :p2}oNpuoD SMBIAIBIU| e
Z :P9INPaYOS SMOIAISIU|
G :yoBal)no Wolj SUsaI0s suoydsjg]
Z1 :yoealno ajyepipuen) .

§1I0}13 BURINIooy ¢/6 JO MooM

awn|oA du) paseasoul
Jo uonedonue u; siojelsado JINidal 0} SENUIUOD AN

91/6 uo Buiuies pajeo|dwod siojetado ¢ .
:S90IAIDG aJe) uodsuel|

193l} JIvy}
Jo 1sed se pasn aq ||IM SSIOIYDA 9|qISSBIIR JIBYD|9BYAL o
LL/6 JO Yoam aolAles Bulpianoad uebag
:uoneuodsuel] [eo1pajN AlisioAI(]

siojoenuooqng

Z1/6 pue zz/g uo uebaq sasse|o Buluiel) MBN
siojelado [Bj01 Q€L

sejepdn JojeladQ

(Krenuep woly %ec+) S| :8leq 0} UNOJPEeaH YIOMISN [elo]

HOm Y¥SEm SOiw LAVE WNuswons dujze ANE

Se
=
NN
0
[ 0z
or
a5
- 08
00T
ot

ovt

si031es2dQ NioMmlapN jerol

ONI44VLS HOLVIIdO (LISNVYLVYVC) €DHVL




punoJe sdij saow o) Buirey pue Sumopyealq S[IYaA 0} anp 9, [ew.ou uey) Jaybiy,
%02 :BAY M G Sholraeld
+%6€°C :82/8 AM
sdu] passiIN %

PISSHA Y  SdIL | POULIOLID Y
ssss_.s_.s.ssssssss_.:sisffFssss.:1
vﬂuﬂvaﬂMuﬂMMMvﬂuﬂuﬂuﬂvﬁuﬂvﬂXM.L\AT»uﬂ.LT,nﬂX.vﬂvﬂM»M
W 0 NN T e R A AR W W NN R R NR R RO DWW KR R
R IR R R U N e R R R A R
W & RN WO TN R R0 R RN WO NN WO Oy

%00 0007
t\ LI A
%1 | LLTYD HTHN
] \M 00sb

%0'T B L]
#oE T l..__ 4 000S
%0t -{\
%0°'S 005S
%09

0009
%0°L
%08

0059
%06
%001 0002

PassliN % pue mQ_L._. paw.ojiad

JONVINIO443d ATMIIM AN




aoueusjule
Ajojeg pesiwoidwon
sjuiejdwon Jawoisny
yjbue du] aAIsseox]
aouUBWIONSd BWi|-UQ
duj are

dul pessIy

'SaI}jeusd Jo SadA]

sduy passiN (%01) M LL$

%E6 > ‘BWIL UO (%91) M8L$

Sje| sulw Qg < ‘du) 91e7 (%82) M6'0€$
Jyssduy g°1 “Ananonpoid (%zy) MS'2v$

se1dq AlYIuoN

000°001%

e N N NN
_ I nengEg ¢
...................... 000°08$
00070513

000°00T$

000°0STS

sebeweq psjepinbi AN

"MTL0TS NS LLL
- Alypuopy
LISNVYLVHV

S39VINVA d3i1vainoill AN




2202 ‘.z Jequieldeg

31vVddN SH0103d10 40 AdvOd 43diN3.LddS




a_f:

2202 ‘Lz 19quiadas
pieog DUVl

uejd s16a3ens
e aplinoid 03
S92IAI9S Bunjjnsuo)

NV 1d
NOILISNVdL
13314
NOISSIING
Ood3Z




a_I:

‘Buipunj g37Z 10} sjuswaiinbai [eiopa) 199N =
'S}S0J djewlil}sy =

"ainjonJisejul s, OHV.L JO 1XajuUod
ulylim salbojouys9al g3z jewiydo auiwialaqg =

‘siealh
0Z-S1 1X9U 33} I9A0 S3snh(] UOISSIWD 019Z 0} }99|}
S, 24Vl JO UOISI9AUO0D 3y} 10} deuwipeol e 9pInOId =

:uejd uonisuel] g3Z ayi Jo sannsaiqo



ST

Buijanj pue uoijonpouid ajis-uo Buipnjduj

usb04pAH - (sg3D4d) sesng 2143293 ||3D |and

ainjanJjseljul buibieyd jo abues buipnjouj

(sg3g) sesng 2111293 Alanyeg

:pazAjeuy saibojouys9] 937



uej|d 1nojjod g3Z
lejos g abelols Abiaug

$3150D B (94n3onJjsedjul)
spaaN |elide)d

uoljisued) bulinp
aJueuajule g suonetado

sisAjeuy uonejuswajdui]

A_I;

AdN/pouiad yoeqhed -

S1S02
awnajl| pue dn-jieis -

suonesado -
doueudjuiep -
uaboapAy 2 o11309|3 -
auljoseq jasa1q -

sisAjeuy |eidueuid

)IOMA\ JO 9d0OIS



a_I:

uolnejuasaid fuipung jeiopad = uonejussaigd
owa JUDBWISSOSSY 9JIAIDS =
U291 919429417 150D 199]4 SIIYSA = oWy
23] 919429417 150D 1994 SIIYSA =
asueui o3l 9] 317 150D 19914 31y

suoljelado
OWIdN

Y29 uonebiisanu| a)is g3g =
uonejuasaid

OWIoN YO9 1 sg304 JUDWISSOSSY JIAIDS =

10} suonesapisuo) Ayjoeq « :
JTETTY]

uondadsul 3)is-uQ = Y231 92423417 150D 193] SIIYOA =

sallljioe4 Abojouyora)

:S9|qeIdAIIDQ WIIdIU|/SeaIY SN0 JUBWISSISSY






S1|NSay 3 SIsA|euy




A_I:

‘'snq/siy 4 ‘xoidde :pasinbai sl buibieys 3ybiuiano -

‘buo] 00} a4k dWOoS
Ing ‘Abojouy293 g3g YiiM 19Ul aq ued sajhod s,Oy V.1 JO 1souwl ‘|asatp
Jo 1oys sjjey ||13s abues snq 1nq buinosduwil si ABojouyra) Ateyyeg -

‘'s93no4 Aduanbaiy ybiy jo spua je Ajuo
papuawiwodas sanije; ( 261eys yainb,, /. Aylunjioddo,) aynos-uQ -

‘pPo31epino ainjdniiseljul
buibieyd bunsixs ‘Ajuo ajnod-uo si buibieyd yiim asuapiadxa s VL -

qg39 :Abojouyora]



a_ls

"199]J 9413Ud S, DYV 1 JO uoneslyii}d9)a ayj poddns ued ‘uoljejjeisul
juswdinba pue sapeibdn Aj13n yiim ‘Aj1jide) buiisixs s JHvV.L -

"}10M ued 3in3dni3s (Adoued) paianod
{(@duewiioyiad A1a13eq J9yleaM pjod) palidjaid Bulbieyd joopuj -

"92IAIDS |ed14399]3 papuedxa salinbay -

‘(49suadsip) ui-bnjd ‘uonanpul
punouib-ui ‘ydeisbojued :suondo ainydnaisesjul buibieyod juaiajjiq -

q939 :Abojouyora]



oL

Ut
‘|1onj med pue jJuawdinba

3502 b1y saiinbai sisA|04129]3 10 YINS eI udboipAy buidnpoid -
‘24njonJisesjul

10} 3509 jeyided juoijdn ybiy e yiim sawiod pue ‘ajiwi Jad 3502
JO swi19} Ul 9dA] [9any anisuadxa j3sowl 9y} sl uaboipAy paianljeg -

‘uaboipAy ainsoid 10 adnposd 1ay3id 3shwi salduaby -
‘'s9jnuiIw

g A|Io1ewixoidde ‘buibieys g3g ueys 19isej yanuwi si buijang -

‘|os3alp 03 Jejiwiis ‘buijany 19d sajlw 0§Z 2buelsng -

‘Buimoib Inq g3g uey) ssa| Jej aie Ajjeuoijeu suonedijddy .

g304 :‘Abojouyday



L

g_I:

‘24njondisedjul
JO Y}1OM S3|214dA 001 01 dn 10} ddeds sey Ajuo Axijidey
Buiisixa s JYV.1 ‘9oeds dn aye] s)yoeqias pue abeiols UsboIpAH -

Jjieds e ajeia2uab
PIN02 jey3 bulyiAue pue pAOY Jusdelpe wou) pajesedas aq
Ishuwi Ly1j10e) Buljany :sanss] A1ajes Jofewt Yiim 3]13e|O0A SI UsboIpAH -

g304 :Abojouyda)



clL

sabueyd (XY
bunjoojq Jofew ‘sabueyd bunjao|q Jouiw ‘sabueyd BuUi}20|q ON -

:g3Z 10} JUSWIUBISSE JUd1IND SSISSY -

sg38 Yiim
39W 9 J0uUued SIjIW 08Z Jo abuel )20|q snq DHV.L Isabuoj] Juasin) -

3199418
-Uo aJe sabueyd }}1ys jsowl ‘apisqind si buibejs/ianoAej/Aianoday -

|2salp 03 |[enba jou ||13s Inq g39 Uey3 193319q sl abuel g304 -
josalp ueysi ss3| ||11s Inq buinoiduwii sl abues g3g -

ABojouydal Aq salien abued 3]21YDA :9ZIs 193]4 uo 3dedw|

suonesado



gL

A_I:

suoneayipow Aijioey
2Wos YiiMm sg3D4 00L 031 puedxa pue sg3D4 0S 21epowwiodde ue) -

193]} 939 %00L 01 uonisuesy Ajjnjued .

Aduaidiyja buijesado pue s3sod buijesado uo joeduwl
0} 9Np papuawiwiodal jJou Aempeolg 0062 1t 199|} jo buijany/buibieyd -

sanljioe) bulsixa
jo suonejuwlij jeaisAyd :g3Z %001 buiralyoe o3 Julesysuod Aiewid -

-SUO0ISN|oU0)



L

USY
‘|leob uoissiwd
019Z %001 199W 10U S0P -PaPUIILIOIDI J0U SI OlIeUdIS AJuo-g3D4 Uy

'sg324 00L JO WNnwWiXew Ym ing -sg304 pue
sg39 JO XIW Y}IM }33]} UOISSIWD 0I3Z 9% Q0L :Z OlIEUdIS

sg34 |1e YIIM 193]} UOISSIWD 0I3Z %Q0L L O11BUIIS

:SOLIBU9IS 9|(EeIA OM L



SISAjeuy 350D 9|2A23)17




8T [4:1" 8T (sojiw uoljjiw) abeaI |e3ol
9T'7s ST'ZS €TTS ajI 42d 3502 Used-UON pue yse) |er1ol

[ 0, -
%GL %SG/ el  aseg o3 uosuedwon
891S 0°£9TS 003 SYVY110d
T'T6ES 6'06€$ 8'€7T$ S350 YseD-UoN pue yseJ |eiog
6'8S 8IS 0'6TS S1S0D V.LNIWNOYIANT V101
m.vm w.mm m 1) 3SION [R2USWILIOIIAUT
vEs 8'9% AR ALMILN/ONINIZTY - SNOISSHA
IS 18 0cs 3dId1IV1 - SNOISSING
1128 80°CS$ €T'TS 3l 12d 350D YseD |ejoL
0, 0, .
%8 %G8 IWEERY oseq o3 uospedwod
6LTS EVLTS 00S SYYT110a
vE8ES T'6LE$ 8'v0T$ 5150 Yse) |ejol

¥'0%- £0s%- €0%- S1502 1vSOdSia VL0l
v'0%- €0$- £0$- 1s0dsia sneg |esodsia
0°0S 00s 00s VSOdSIA AY3LLYE

§'TSTS 7'69TS 0°901$ S1SOD DNILYYIdO V101
8'6S s 0'0% YNLINYLSYYINI ONITINI/ONIDYVHD

L'9E$ 18 1'8€$ $1502 13N4 T1DIHIA Bunesado
7SS €9s 8vS SIYIL ITDIHIAA

S'E0TS 0'8TTS T°€9$ IINVNILNIVIA I1DIHIA

€'TECS (40174 066$ $1S02 VL4V 101
L'TES 9'8TS S1s JUNLINYLSYHANI ONITINA/ONIDUYHD

7'8¢S 9'/2S SETS ADNIADNILNOD 8 SNOILYIIHIAON _m..-_n_mo
TATARS 0'v9TS 0'v8s I014d ISVHIUN FIHIA
g9234H/939 aaIXIn 839 %001

($ 1Z202) s1Insay sisAjeuy 350D 312423411




Z8T 8T 8T (sa]1w uoj|jtwi) abea|lN [ejoL
56°SS 81°9% €8°€S oI 12d s150D YseD-UoN pue ysed jejol

%95 %19 - INIDY3d
98€$ LTS 0s SYvTI0d RG,02.U05) NG
780'TS €TT'TS 969% §150) Yse)-UoN pue yse) [ejoL
LES 8rs zLS 51502 TV.LNIWNOYIANI TY.LOL
a5 0'sTS Ojory 3SION [eIUSWIUOIIAUT
STS 0'8zs 0'S¥S ALMILN/ONINIZFY - SNOISSING i
qs LS 6'LS 3dId1IVL - SNOISSING
SL°SS T6°GS Er'ES apw Jad 1s0) ysed je1o]
%39 %L - INIDYAd
s [492) 0s SYYTI0d *¢aa o UasiediiaD
SPO'TS SLOTS 29$ 150D Yyse) |e10)
£s- £s- zs- $1S02 1vS0dSIa W.10L
£$- LTS TS WS0dSIa sng jesodsiq
0s 0S 0$ vSOdSIQ A4 LLVE
zr9s I£9% vERS S1S02 ONILYY3dO Tv10L
Ss 01$ 0$ JUNLONYLISYYAINI ONIMTINI/ONIDYYHD
9ETS 6.5 19T$ $150073N4 IDIHIA bupeiado
TS LA 6TS SIYIL ITDIHIAA
1727278 6tSS 274 FONVNILNIVN F1DIHIA
9EPS 90¥s Z6TS S1S02 VLIdVD V101
9¢s 0zs zs FUNLINYLISYHANI ONITINS/ONIDYVHD [eades
L5$ 95¢ L2$ AINADNILNOD 8 SNOILYDIHIAOW

vITS 3014d ISVHOUND IIDIHIA

g254H/939 aaxin 9
H/ 939 %001 ———

‘Z OIdYN3OS ‘LORIVYNIOS

($ 21n1puadx3 jo Jea ) s}NsaY sisAjeuy 1s0)) 3j2A29411



& - a - o1 ST 14" 91 o1 14" ST - - - 8304 ¥oY
L1 LT ot 91 S > - - - - - o1 8 14" 9389 3oY

- - L - - - - - - - - 9 - - LRI

g304/939 @3XIN ‘2 OIdVYNIDS

LT LT ot 91 ST ST 14" 91 9T 14" S o1 8 14 9349 YooY

- - L - - - - - - - - 9 - - €38 YSE

839 %00L:L OIdVNIOS

8 - - - - T - 11 - - 01 - 8 - gAH HOY

LT LT ot 91 ST 14" 14! S 9T 14" S ot - 14" |os91d JOY

i i [ . . . . - : : - 9 : - |esala WSS

OIIVNIOS aling ON

e x| s o o e o | s s s | e

a|npayos jusawade|day a|dIYyaA




6L

v 9EYS
vy Trs
€6°0vS
6L°9€S
€8'GES
TTPeS
68'€ES
€9°0€$
89°€€S
TGZES
LTS
ot'8¢S
vE'STS
vO'€TS
8€°'TTS

g304/939
:Z olleUddS

LY"90VS
O TYS
85°6€S
LSSES
9'vES
GETES
970€S
9T'LTS
80°0€$
€0°6CS
4% 74
9€°STS
0S'¥2S
09°'CTS
£9°0T$

834 %001
L olleud2S

LTT6TS
6€° LTS
LL9TS
0T'9TS
89 VTS
8T'ETS
€S'E€TS
SS'TTS
10°02$
0€°CTS
6€°0TS
6991
Z0'1T$
LL°6S
9£°8$

pling-oN

($ ainupuadxs jo seak) Jed A A S1S0D |eyde)



eT4

a_I:

87S'e TVLOL
V8T
S1¢
88¢
T1€
%0L 19
L9¢€ inr
69¢
0LE
LEE
66¢

0z
€02
(UMW) 3ndinO Aelly D4

(Aedie Jejos doljoou Jo 1ndino Ajyjuowd) jeljuajod iejos

*}99]3 934 %00L 10}
sjudwaiinbai AydL3d919
JO 924no0s se Jejos




UolepuslllOO9H




(44

(o

"UOISI9AUO0D g7 10} uonjdo anlsuadxa jsea| ayisig3ig -

‘pai1dadxa aJe sjuswanoiduwi A6ojouy sl Aiajreq panuijuod
pue spaau 32IA13S S DY V.1 jo Aiuofew ayj 399wl ued Abojouysarg3g -

‘9|NPaYIs Jusawiaindoid s HVL YIm
subije 1933199 1yl Yyoeoidde ajqejeds e 10j) smo|je Abojouydai g3g -

"sallljIoe) bulisixe o3 uondnisip
Jewuiw Y3IM 193]} S, DUV L JO %00L HMdAU0d ued Abojouyla1 939 -

199|4 939 %00L - L OlLIeUIIS :UoIjepUaWILWIO0IdY



4

#HIAYEA Iy ueajn

H_I:



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON
COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
Louisville, Kentucky

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON
COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

CONTENTS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (PROPRIETARY FUND) ..........ovuovomeeeeeoeneeeeeeeeeee oo eeeeeee e oo oo

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN
NET POSITION (PROPRIETARY FUND) .........ccoiumiuriuiimnesemsseesiesenssesssieseseoseossseseesssesesesees st s s s oo seeeeeseee s

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION (FIDUCIARY FUND)...ooiiini e
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .......coiitiiiriuiiuitiieestiesseeteesse e eeeesee e seesesessseteesesesessee s s eeeooeeeee oo
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TARC'S NET PENSION LIABILITY -
EMPLOYEES' AMENDED RETIREMENT PLAN ......cuuiititeiutiitieer e seeeseeeseee s ees s eeeeseeoeeoeeeoeeeoeooeenn

SCHEDULE OF TARC'S CONTRIBUTIONS — EMPLOYEES’ AMENDED
RETIREMENT PLAN ..ottt sss st as s ettt ee et e e e e e ee e e e e s eeoeeeseesee e

SCHEDULE OF MONEY-WEIGHTED RATES OF RETURN — EMPLOYEES’ AMENDED
RETIREMENT PLAN . ...ttt et cas s tes s sess st s e s ee s ee e eee s s ees s eee e e e e oo e oo

SCHEDULE OF TARC'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION
LIABILITY — COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS .......oovvovemooooooooo

SCHEDULE OF TARC'S CONTRIBUTIONS -
COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS ...

SCHEDULE OF TARC’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB
LIABILITY — COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS ...ooooooooooeooeoeeoooooe

SCHEDULE OF TARC’S OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS -
COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM — NON-HAZARDOUS ......cooooueeeeeeeoeeeoeeooeeeeooeooeooooeoeeoeoooeo

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION = BUDGET TO ACTUAL .....coootmmiurtinteieesineteescesteesss oo eee et ee e eees et eees e oeeeeeeee e oo

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS........c.. ot eoceeeaeeee e ee oo

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM:
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE .......oooovooeeoeoeoeooeooeooeoo

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS.........coeeueeieectrceie oo ieeeeeeeteeeteeeeees et eesseseeeesee s oo oees oo



Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors
Transit Authority of River City
Louisville, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Transit Authority of River City
(TARC), a component unit of Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2022, and the fiduciary activities as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the TARC's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities of TARC as of June 30, 2022, and
the fiduciary activities as of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the TARC, and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about TARC’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of TARC's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about TARC's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes in TARC's net pension liability, schedule of TARC’s
contributions, and the schedule money-weighted rates of return for the Employees’ Amended Retirement Plan,
the schedule of TARC's proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of TARC's contributions for
the County Employees’ Retirement System — Non-hazardous, and the schedule of TARC’s proportionate share
of the net OPEB liability and schedule of TARC’s OPEB contributions for the County Employees’ Retirement
System - Non-hazardous on pages 5-9 and 42-51 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise TARC’s basic financial statements. The schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in net
position — budget to actual is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in net position — budget to actual is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated <date of report>
on our consideration of TARC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of TARC’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering TARC's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Crowe LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
<>, 2022




TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended June 30, 2022

Financial Highlights and Current Known Facts. Decisions and Conditions Impacting Future Periods

The management of the Transit Authority of River City (TARC) presents this narrative overview and analysis of
the financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

High points for the fiscal year included achieving modest increases in fare revenue and ridership following steep
declines brought on by the pandemic, attracting the largest number of new Coach Operators in our 48-year
history, modernizing our fleet with the arrival of 47 new cleaner emissions buses, and locking in a firm fixed price
for fuel at $1.78 for the next year to keep this major commodity stable.

TARC completed Fiscal Year 2022 in a fairly stable position. The Jefferson County Occupational License Fee,
or Mass Transit Trust Fund — the major source of TARC operating funds — was budgeted at $54.09 million for
FY2022. The actual amount of receipts for FY 2022 was $71.2 million, a 31.5% increase, mainly due to a $5.0m
one-time capital gain received in April 2022.

TARC also benefitted from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), which made funding available to public transit
agencies for capital purchases including fleet replacement, preventive maintenance, and purchased
transportation. Additional federal funds are included in competitive, discretionary programs, which TARC will
apply for to further fleet electrification, facilities renovation, and the advancement and execution of corridor plans.

Additionally, the Commonwealth of Kentucky included general fund dollars for public transportation, while the
state of Indiana provides funding through the Public Mass Transportation Fund. Both states are now supporting
services provided by TARC.

TARC will continue to face financial challenges, as the costs of fixed-route and paratransit services, maintenance
needs, health insurance, and pensions continue to rise while available funding and fare revenue remain relatively
flat. To ensure a forward-looking perspective, TARC team members are developing a Long Range Plan, a Fleet
Electrification Study, a Micro Mobility Study, and additional efforts to shape the future of the agency’s operations,
programs, and services for the future. In addition, staff will soon complete a review of TARC'’s organizational
mission, vision, and values for a Strategic Outcomes Roadmap — dedicated to achieving important short-term
successes and developing strategies with actionable and measurable outcomes for the next fiscal year.

In the coming year, our team will continue efforts to increase revenue and funding, ensure the highest efficiency
in our routes and schedules, and solidify plans that ensure our long-term viability and sustainability. TARC
remains focused on its mission to be the most trusted and reliable mobility choice in Greater Louisville.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: Management Discussion and Analysis (this section), Financial
Statements and Supplementary Information. The Financial Statements include notes that provide additional
information relating to TARC's financial condition. Readers are encouraged to read the notes to better understand
the financial statements.

Reauired Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position

The statement of net position includes all of TARC's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and
the resulting net position, and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources
(assets) and the obligations to creditors (liabilities). The statement of net position also provides the basis for
evaluating the capital structure of TARC and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the organization.

(Continued)



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended June 30, 2022

Required Financial Statements (continued)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position identifies the revenues generated, the
expenses incurred and the resulting change in net position during the fiscal year. This statement helps the user
to assess TARC's financial performance during the fiscal years covered by the Statement.

Statement of Cash Flows
The statement of cash flows provides information relating to TARC's cash receipts and cash expenditures during

the fiscal year. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash, resulting from
operating, non-capital, capital and financing activities, and provides answers to such questions as where did cash

come from, what was cash used for and what was the change in the cash balance during the reporting period.

Budgetary Controls

TARC operates its general activities in accordance with a budget adopted by the Board and approved by the

Metro Louisville Council.

Financial
Table 1
Condensed Statements of Net Position
2022 2021 Change
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Current assets $ 17,099,685 $ 24,310,204 $ (7,210,519)
Capital assets, net 79,987,564 76,166,345 3,821,219
Other investments - 31.000 (31.000)
Total assets 97,087,249 100,507,549 (3,420,300)
Deferred outflows of resources 21,869,296 29.017.202 (7.147.906)
Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources $ 118,956,545 $ 129524751  $ (10.568.,206)
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
NET POSITION
Current liabilities $ 12,496,662 $ 19,256,798 $ (6,760,136)
Long-term liabilities 109.725.967 133.053.760 (23.327.793)
Total liabilities 122,222,629 152,310,558 (30,087,929)
Deferred inflows of resources 24,882,903 9.141.960 15.740.943
Total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources 147.105.532 161.452.518 (14.346.986)
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 79,865,867 75,903,807 3,962,060
Unrestricted net position (108.014,854) (107.831.574) (183.280)
Total net position (28,148.987) (31.927.767) 3.778.780
Total liabilities, deferred inflow of resources
and net position $ 118,956,545 § 129,524,751 $ (10,568,206)
(Continued)



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended June 30, 2022

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

TARC's total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased $10,568,206 from FY 2021. The statement
of net position indicates the most significant changes were a decrease in federal grant receivables and a
decrease in deferred outflows, which were offset by modest increases in capital assets cash and cash
equivalents. TARC's federal grant receivables, due primarily from the Federal Department of Transportation,
decreased $7,747,542 from FY 2021. Deferred outflows of resources are comprised of deferred amounts related
to the TARC pension plan and the CERS pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) plans. Deferred
outflows, which include employer pension and OPEB contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the
net pension and net OPEB liabilities, decreased $7,147,906 from FY 2021.

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

TARC's total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources decreased $14,346,986 from FY 2021 due primarily to
a decrease in the TARC pension liability and the CERS pension and OPEB liabilities, a decrease in accounts
payable and other liabilities, and an increase in deferred inflows. TARC pension liability and the CERS pension
and OPEB liabilities decreased $22,936,452 from FY 2021. Accounts payable and other liabilities decreased
$6,651,144 from FY 2021, due primarily to a significantly higher amount of capital asset purchases financed
through accounts payable as of June 30, 2021. Deferred inflows of resources are comprised of deferred amounts
related to the TARC pension plan and the CERS pension and OPEB plans. Deferred inflows increased
$15,740,943 from FY 2021.

Net Position
TARC's liabilities and deferred inflows exceeded its assets and deferred outflows by $28,148,987 at the end of
FY 2022. Net position increased $3,778,780 from FY 2021.

Capital Assets
Table 2
Summary of changes in capital assets

Balance at Retirements Balance at
July 1, 2021 Additions (Adjustments) June 30, 2022
Land $ 3187624 $ - $ - $ 3,187,624
Buildings 49,152,447 334,545 - 49,486,992
Coaches 121,856,037 14,316,898 (5,323,761) 130,849,174
Office and computer equipment 10,317,168 218,790 (46,366) 10,489,592
Other equipment 21.703.616 915.606 - 22 619,222
206,216,892 15,785,839 (5,370,127) 216,632,604
Accumulated depreciation (130.050.547) (11.961.040) (5.366.547) 136.645.040
Capital assets, net $ 76166345 § 3824799 § _ (3.580) $ 79.987.564

TARC's capital assets, net of depreciation, increased by $3,821,219. This increase is the result of current year
acquisitions of capital assets exceeding current year depreciation expense and retirements of capital assets.
Acquisitions of capital assets were primarily purchases of coaches. Depreciation expense for FY 2022 was
$11,961,040. Generally, capital asset purchases are completed with federal, state and/or local funding.

(Continued)



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended June 30, 2022

Revenues
Table 3
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Dollar Percent
2022 2021 Change Change
OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger transportation $ 5252950 $ 5408,087 $ (155,137) (2.87%)
Special fares 1,653,207 1,717,095 (163,888) (9.54)
Interest, advertising, and other income 1.056.408 1.138.975 (82.567) (7.25)
Total operating revenues 7,862,565 8,264,157 (401,592) (4.86)
OPERATING EXPENSES
Labor, pension and OPEB 59,542,698 66,545,301 (7,002,603) (10.52)
Depreciation 11,961,040 10,916,707 1,044,333 9.57
Other operating expenses 30.478.358 31,174,042 (695.684) (2.23)
Total operating expenses 101,982,096 108,636,050 (6,653,954) (6.12)
NONOPERATING REVENUES AND
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Mass Transit Trust Fund resources 52,571,426 49,943,084 2,627,442 (5.26)
Federal Transit Administration 38,059,566 37,747,311 312,255 0.83
Indiana Department of Transportation 970,336 988,400 (18,064) (1.83)
KIPDA, KTC, and Other 6.296.983 1.684.737 4612246 273.77
Total non-operating revenues
and capital contributions 97.898.311 90.364 432 7.533.879 8.34
Change in net position 3.778.780 (10.007.461) $ 13,786,241 (137.76%)
Net position, beginning of year (31,927 767) (21.920,306)
Net position, end of year $ (28.148087) § (31.927767)

TARC's operating revenues decreased 4.86% from FY 2021. TARC receives funding from sources other than
operating revenue. TARC has a dedicated funding source through the Mass Transit Trust Fund ("MTTF") and
also receives federal and state funding (Kentucky and Indiana). The MTTF contributed $50,865,563 for FY 2022
and $49,069,249 for FY 2021 for TARC's operating expenses and $1,705,863 for FY 2022 and $874,735 for FY
2021 for capital related purchases. The federal funding included funding for operations and capital purchases of
$38,059,566 for FY 2022 and $37,747,311 for FY 2021.

(Continued)



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year ended June 30, 2022

Expenses

Expenses excluding depreciation were $90,021,056 for FY 2022 and $97,719,343 for FY 2021. This change
represents an decrease of 7.88%.

TARC is a labor-intensive industry and the cost of labor and benefits comprise the bulk of TARC's expenses.
Labor and fringe benefits costs, including pension and OPEB expense, were $59,542,698 in FY 2022 and
$66,545,301 in FY 2021. TARC experienced increases in both labor and health care costs, however these
increases were offset by a decrease in pension and OPEB expense of $8,873,318 from FY 2021. Purchased
Transportation decreased 10.48%, from $13,264,507 in FY 2022 and $14,817,237 in FY 2021. The bulk of
purchased transportation is utilized to supply TARC 3 service, a service required by the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Results of Operations

TARC has made a commitment to taxpayers of this community to provide reliable and safe transportation. The
economy has a direct effect on TARC's funding sources. TARC has made every effort to streamline its
administrative staff. Also, the hiring and training of bus drivers is paramount in keeping operating costs at a
manageable level. While there are no government-imposed limits on the balance of the MTTF, TARC's Board
of Directors passed a motion that requires Board approval for the balance to go below two months of operating
reserves. Currently, the MTTF balance, including accruals, is $46,436,662. MTTF dollars are also required to
leverage the use of reimbursement for Federal funds.

Requests for Additional Information

This report is intended to provide readers with a general overview of TARC's finances and to provide information
regarding the receipts and uses of funds. If you need clarification regarding a statement(s) made in the report or
need additional information, please contact the Transit Authority of River City, Attention: Finance Department,
1000 West Broadway, Louisville, Kentucky 40203.




TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts and grants receivable, net
Trade receivables
Grant receivables
Materials and supplies inventory, net
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total capital assets

Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related
OPEB related
Total deferred outflows or resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

-

9,875,123
30,643

2,240,122
2,932,075
1,837,542
184.180
17,099,685

3,187,624
76.799.940
79.987 564

97.087.249

9,105,375
12.763.921
21.869.296

$ 118.956,545

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

10.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2022

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Note payable
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Compensated absences
Estimated liability for uninsured liability claims
Estimated liability for uninsured workers’ compensation claims
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences
Estimated liability for uninsured liability claims
Estimated liability for uninsured workers’ compensation claims
Net pension liability:

County Employee Retirement System

TARC Pension Plan
Net OPEB liability

Total net pension liability and net OPEB liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related
OPERB related
Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

$ 121,697
7,932,384
1,698,729

405,500
693,351
1,645,001

—_— e T S

12,496 662

1,698,729
873,900
3,037,922

79,711,204
475,023
23,929,189

e = =

104.115.416

———b L

109,725,967

P— A LiTA A5

122,222 629

p—— 4

13,026,413
11.856.490

= ==

24,882 903

147,105,532

79,865,867

(108.014.854)
(28.148.987)

$ 118.956.545

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)

PROPRIETARY FUND
Year ended June 30, 2022

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating revenues
Passenger fares
Special transit fares
Advertising
Interest
Other revenue
Recoveries
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Labor
Fringe benefits, budget basis
Plus: annual pension adjustments
Plus: annual OPEB adjustments
Total labor, fringe benefits, pension and OPEB

Services
Development costs
Materials and supplies
Utilities
Casualty and insurance
Miscellaneous
Rentals and purchased transportation
Interest
Depreciation
Loss on disposai
Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Non-operating revenues
Mass Transit Trust Fund and interest
Mass Transit Trust Fund capital assistance for operating
Federal Transit Administration
Indiana Department of Transportation
Kentucky Regional Planning and Development Agency/Other
Total non-operating revenues

Loss before capital contributions
Capital contributions:
Mass Transit Trust Fund and interest
Federal Transit Administration and Pass-Through Entities
KIPDA and other
Total capital contributions
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

$ 5,252,950
1,653,207
644,167

69,433

136,111
208,697
7,862,565

30,701,505
28,888,796
(292,041)
244 438
28,841,193

5,705,776
693,423
6,370,931
1,035,703
2,928,897
467,683
13,264,507
7,858
11,961,040
3.580
101,982,096

— e N

(94,119,531)

50,865,563
1,186,166
25,469,263
970,336
3.017.772

—tee L L

81.509.090
(12,610,441)
519,707
12,590,303
3.279.211
16.389.221
3,778,780
(31.927.767)

$_ (26,148,087

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

12.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from passengers and service contracts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Federal assistance
State assistance
Mass Transit Trust Fund operational receipts
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Payments on notes payable
Government Federal subsidies
Mass transit frust fund capital subsidies
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Purchases of investments
Purchases of capital assets
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest activity

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash
used in operating activities:
Loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations
to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation

Net pension liability

Pension related deferred outflows of resources

Pension related deferred inflows of resources

Net OPEB liability

OPEB related deferred outflows of resources

OPEB related deferred inflows of resources

(Increase) decrease in:
Trade accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Estimated liability for uninsured liability claims
Estimated liability for uninsured workers’ compensation claims
Unearned revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

$ 8,999,973
(37,897,080)
59,302,601}

(88,199,708)

33,216,805

3,988,108
50,865,563
88,070,476

(148,699)
15,869,514
1,477,453
19,663

(30,643)

(15.836,077)
1,351,211

69.433
1,291,412
8583711

$ 0876123

$ (94,119,531)

11,961,040
(16,667,189)
6,254,302
10,120,846
(6,269,263)
893,604
5,620,097

1,049,300
(128,929)
93,071
(6,570,525)
(222,924)
(735,300)
433,585
88.108

$ (88.199.708)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

13.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND — PENSION TRUST FUND
December 31, 2021

ASSETS
Investments, at fair value
Mutual funds
Money market funds
Total investments, at fair value

Other receivables
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Administrative expenses payable
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net position restricted for pensions

$ 1,043,000
97,013
1,140,103

2.969

1,143,072

5543

5,543

$ 1,137,529

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

14.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND — PENSION TRUST FUND
Year ended December 31, 2021

Additions
Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends

Employer contributions
Total additions
Deductions
Benefit paid to participants
Administrative expenses
Total deductions
Net increase in net position

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning of year (as restated)

Plan fiduciary net position, end of year

$ 146,962
18.471
165,433

276,040
441,473

323,551
35,090
358,641

82,832

1.054.697
$1.137,529

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

15.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

The Transit Authority of River City ("TARC" or the “Authority”) is a public corporation created by joint
proceedings of the City of Louisville and Jefferson County Fiscal Court pursuant to KRS Chapter 96A of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky to provide public transportation for Louisville, Kentucky and its metro areas.
TARC is considered a discretely presented component unit of Louisville/Jefferson County Metro
Government for financial statement reporting purposes. In order to measure the costs of providing mass
transportation services, the revenues from those services and required subsidies, TARC has adopted the
accounting methods appropriate for a governmental enterprise fund. TARC is a government entity and
exempt from federal and state income taxes.

Budgetary Controls: Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America except that the budget omits depreciation expense and accounts
for the principal portion of the capitalized lease payments as an expense. Appropriated budgets are
adopted on an annual basis. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Project-length financial
plans are adopted for all capital projects. Legal budgetary control is established at the fund level (i.e.
expenditures for a fund may not exceed the total appropriation amount). TARC is authorized to transfer
budgeted amounts within the fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures must be
approved by Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government Council. TARC's management prepares the
annual budget and submits it to the Board of Directors (the "Board") for approval. This has historically been
performed in April of each year and submitted to Metro Office of Management and Budget by May 1st. The
Board-approved budgets for the 2022 fiscal year were submitted to and approved by Louisville/Jefferson
County Metro Government Council in June 2021.

Concentration of Funding: TARC relied on local funding from the Mass Transit Trust Fund ("MTTF” or the
“Fund”) for 58% of total operating revenue in 2022 before capital contributions. The Fund administers the
proceeds of the Louisville-Jefferson County Metro Government (*“Metro Government”) occupational license
tax authorized by the electorate to finance a mass transportation program in Metro Louisville. The assets
of the Fund are restricted to finance the operating deficits and capital expenditures approved in the Annual
Budget by the Metro Government Council for TARC. TARC also relies on federal reimbursement
assistance for operations and capital acquisitions. In 2022, federal revenues represented approximately
23% of total operating revenues before capital contributions due to the use of CARES and CRRSA funds,
which were available to use at 100% or no non-federal (i.e. local match) share. For other federal formula
or discretionary funds, the split between federal and local or state is 80 federal / 20 non-federal, which
means that local or state funds must be kept in reserve in order to leverage federal funds.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting: The financial statements of TARC have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as applied to government units by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). TARC operates as an enterprise fund and
fiduciary fund and all activities are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

(Continued)

186.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary Fund: The Authority is a single-enterprise proprietary fund and uses the accrual basis of
accounting. Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed in a manner similar to a
private business enterprise and that a periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or
change in net position is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes. Authority activities are accounted for using the flow of economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned, and expenses are recognized as soon as they result in liabilities for the benefits
provided. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items:

¢ Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with the proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers in the form of bus fares and
reimbursement by sponsors of subsidized routes.

e Operating expenses include the cost of providing transit service, administrative expenses and
depreciation and amortization on capital assets.

» Property taxes, federal, state, and local assistance used to finance operations and expenses not
related to the provision of transit service are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

It is the Authority’s policy to apply restricted resources first when an obligation is incurred for which both
restricted and unrestricted net position are available for use.

Component Unit/Fiduciary Fund: The Authority's defined benefit pension trust fund is presented as a
pension trust fiduciary fund in the accompanying financial statements. The defined benefit plan is
considered a pension plan under GASB 67 and it meets the GASB 14, as amended, and GASB 84
requirements for presentation as a fiduciary component unit. The plan’s trust document authorizes a Board
of Trustees consisting of three members appointed by the Authority’s Board of Directors and three members
of the Local Union, with one member being the person holding the office of Local Union President, as
elected by Union membership, and the second and third member being selected by the Union President.
The Authority reserves the right to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of the plan. The
Authority has assumed the obligation to make contributions to the plan. The plan’s assets are being held
exclusively for the benefit of pension participants and cannot be used for the activities or obligations of the
Authority. The Fiduciary Fund has been presented as of its fiscal year end December 31, 2021,

Implementation of Accounting Standards: The Authority adopted the following accounting standard during
the year, which was determined to have no impact on the Authority's financial position or results of
operations:

o GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. Adoption of this Statement did not impact the Authority’s financial position or results
of operations, however additional required disclosures of leasing activities have been included.

¢ GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020: The objective of this Statement is to establish accounting
and financial reporting requirements for specific issues related to leases, intra-entity transfers of
assets, postemployment benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing and insurance related
activities of public entity risk pools, fair value measurements, and derivative instruments. Certain
requirements of this Statement were previously adopted by TARC in the prior year, and all
remaining requirements of this Statement were adopted during the year.

(Continued)

17.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

o GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The objective of this Statement
is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that resuit from the
replacement of an Interbank Offered Rate.

o GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criferia, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. This statement (a) clarifies
how the absence of a governing board should be considered in determining whether a primary
government is financially accountable for purposes of evaluating potential component units and (b)
modifies the applicability of certain component unit criteria as they relate to defined contribution
pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans (for example,
certain Section 457 plans). Certain requirements of this Statement were previously adopted by
TARC in the prior year, and all remaining requirements of this Statement were adopted during the
year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: TARC considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted investments)
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Prepaid Expenses: Prepaid expenses consist of normal operating expenses for which payment is due in
advance such as insurance and are expensed when the benefit is received.

Accounts Receivable: TARC uses the allowance for bad debts method of valuing doubtful accounts
receivable, which is based on historical experience, coupled with a review of the current status of existing
receivables. No allowance for doubtful accounts was recorded at June 30, 2022.

Materials and Supplies Inventory: Inventory consists of fuel, tires, repair parts and supplies. No general
administrative expenses are included in the inventory valuation. Expenses are recorded as the materials
are consumed. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out method.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are stated at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. TARC's depreciation policy requires that all qualifying assets with costs in excess
of $500 to be capitalized. Depreciation is recorded on all depreciable capital assets on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are five to forty years for land
improvements, forty years for buildings, ten to twenty years for building repairs and improvements, twelve
years for coaches and capitalized vehicles, five years for other equipment, and five years for office
equipment. TARC has acquired certain assets with funding provided by federal assistance from the FTA
grant programs. TARC holds title to these assets; however, the federal government retains an interest in
these assets should TARC no longer use the assets for mass transit purposes. TARC periodically reviews
the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever adverse events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable.

Net Position: GASB requires the classification of net position into three components — net investment in
capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted. These net position classifications are defined as follows:

¢ Net investment in capital assets - This component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

e Restricted net position — This component consists of any externally restricted funds or enabling
legislation.

(Continued)

18.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of net position that does not
meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

Self-Insurance: TARC is self-insured for workers' compensation and liability claims up to varying deductible
amounts per occurrence for workers' compensation and liability claims. Other liability claims incurred prior
to January 1, 1987 and workers' compensation claims in excess of the self-insured amounts are covered
by varying amounts of insurance.

TARC is self-insured for cyber property and liability claims per occurrence for third party liability coverages
and data breach crisis management, first party network business interruption and extra expenses property
coverages, and first party data breach crisis management property coverages to replace, recreate, restore
or repair damaged programs, software or electronic data.

Changes in TARC's liability for uninsured workers' compensation and uninsured liability claims for the year
ended June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Claims and
Beginning Changes in Claim Ending Due Within
Balance Estimates Payments Balance One Year
Uninsured worker's
compensation $ 3297688 § 2486830 ($2.053.245) §$4.043.848 $ 693,351
Uninsured liability claims $ 2014700 §$ 641700 ($1,377.000) $4.770200 $ 405500

Changes in TARC's liability for uninsured workers' compensation and uninsured liability claims for the year
ended June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Claims and
Beginning Changes in Claim Ending Due Within
Balance Estimates Payments Balance One Year

Uninsured worker's
compensation 2.5651.52 $ 1273206 ($ 527,046) $ 3297688 § 345525

Uninsured liability claims ~ $ 1.462.800 §$ 1653700 ($1.101.800) $2.014700 §$ 784.033

Excess coverage for liability claims can be purchased through Louisville Area Governmental Self-insurance
Trust when available. TARC participates in the Louisville Area Governmental Self Insurance Trust (the
"Trust"). The Trust provides insurance coverage on liability claims made in excess of each member's
deductible amount. The amount of coverage available to TARC could be limited by the total assets of the
Trust.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year. Settlement
amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years for uninsured worker's
compensation and uninsured liability claims at the TARC level.

(Continued)

19.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Compensated Absences: Accrued compensated absences represent vested or accumulated sick time and
vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Full-time
employees who have a continuous service record of one year or longer are entitled to an annual vacation
from one to six weeks, based on a predetermined schedule. TARC’s policy permits employees to
accumulate earned but unused vacation. Employees can receive payment for earned, but unused vacation
leave up to 240 hours. For bargaining employees, if the employee’s predetermined schedule is changed
by TARC’s management, TARC is required to reschedule the employee’s vacation time, which may carry
the time over to the following year. In the event the non-bargaining employee has not taken his or her
vacation by the end of the calendar year then his or her vacation time can be taken, paid or lost as deemed
prudent by TARC’s management. All full-time active employees earn sick days at the rate of 5/6 of a day
per month, 10 days per year, up to a maximum of 145 days. Upon retirement, the following two options are
available for the unused sick day accumulation:

a. TARC will buy back all accumulated sick days at 100% of the employee’s current pay rate, or
b. If the employee is a member of TARC’s retirement plan, the unused sick days can be considered
as time worked to either advance a normal retirement date and increase service credits.

Changes in TARC's liability for compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Compensated absences $3620382 §$4156.887 ($4.379.811) $3.397.458 § 1.698720

Unearned Revenue: Advance fare media that have not been redeemed through the fare box are shown as
unearned revenue. Unearned revenue at June 30, 2022 was $1,645,001.

Net Pension Liability: TARC has recorded a net pension liability reflecting the difference between the total
pension liabilities and the fiduciary net positions of the single employer defined benefit plan and the County
Employees Retirement System plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows
and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the single employer defined benefit plan and the County Employees Retirement System (CERS)
plan and additions to deductions from the single employer defined benefit plan and the CERS plan fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the single employer defined
benefit plan and the CERS plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

Beginning Ending
Balance Net Change Balance
At June 30, 2022:
TARC Pension Plan $ 907,047 $ (432,024) 3 475,023
CERS 95,946,369 (16.235.165) 79.711.204
Net pension liability $ 96,853,416 $ (16,667,189) 3 80,186,227
(Continued)

20.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability: TARC has recorded a net OPEB liability reflecting the difference between the total
OPEB liability and the fiduciary net positions of the County Employees Retirement System plan. For
purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the CERS plan and additions
to deductions from the CERS plan fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the CERS plan. For this purpose, benefit payments recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Beginning Ending
Balance Net Change Balance
At June 30, 2022:
Net OPEB liability $30198452 § (6269263) $ 23,920.189

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources: These deferred amounts represent a
consumption (outflow) or acquisition (inflow) of net position that applies to future periods. TARC’s activities
are related to recognition of changes in its defined benefit plans’ net pension liability and net OPEB liability
totaling $24,882,903 of deferred inflows of resources and $21,869,296 of deferred outflows of resources
that will be amortized to expense in future periods.

Operating Revenues and Expenses: Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services in connection with ongoing operations. Revenues are recorded as income in a manner consistent
with the timing of the provided service. Operating expenses include the cost of delivering services,
administrative expenses and depreciation expenses on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fare Revenues: Passenger fares are recorded as revenue at the time such services are performed, and
revenues pass through the fare box. Sales of Stored Rides, Period Passes, and Pay as you go are recorded
initially as unredeemed fares and recognized as income upon passage through the fare box. All other fare
products are considered revenue when purchased.

Capital and Operating Grants: Certain expenditures for capital acquisitions, improvements and
development of an urban mass transportation system have received significant federal funding through the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The balance of such expenditures is funded through various grants
and receipts from MTTF. Funds provided by governmental authorities for capital and operating assistance
are recorded when earned.

(Continued)

21



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 3 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
A summary of cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Cash and Cash

Equivalents
Operating accounts:
Cash in bank and on hand $ 2,295,262
U.S. Government money market 7.579.862
Total cash and cash equivalents 9,875,124
Treasury note (investments) 30,643
Total $ 9905767

The bank balance of cash, cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2022 was $11,818,523. The
difference represents outstanding checks and deposits in transit.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of
failure by a financial institution, TARC may not be able to recover the value of its deposits and investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of the financial institution. TARC's investment policy
dictates that all cash and investments maintained in any financial institution named as a depository be
collateralized and the collateral held in the name of TARC. TARC's cash deposits at June 30, 2022, were
entirely covered by FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by TARC's agent bank in TARC's name.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. TARC's investment policy limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. Investments are made
based upon prevailing market conditions at the time of the transaction. TARC reviews its cash and
investment needs in order to maintain adequate liquidity to meet its cash flow needs. Assets categorized
as short-term operating funds will be invested in investments maturing in 12 months or less.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Investments are made under the 'prudent investor' standard to ensure that (a) due diligence is
exercised in accordance with State law, (b) any negative deviations are reported timely and (c) reasonable
action is taken to control any adverse developments. TARC's investment policy requires investment in
instruments authorized in KRS 66.480(a)-(d).

Concentration of Credit Risk: TARC's investment policy requires diversification of the overall portfolio to
eliminate the risk of loss from an over-concentration of assets in a specific class of security, a specific
maturity, and/or a specific issuer.

Foreian Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely
impact the fair value of an investment. TARC is not exposed to this risk and its investment policy does not
provide for investments in foreign currency denominated securities.

(Continued)

22,



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/

JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2022

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 are summarized as follows:

Balance at Retirements Balance at
July 1, 2021 Additions (Adiustments)  June 30. 2022
Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated
Land $ 3187624 - - § 3187624
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Buildings 49,152 447 334,545 - 49,486,992
Coaches 121,856,037 14,316,898 (5,323,761) 130,849,174
Office and computer equipment 10,317,168 218,790 (46,366) 10,489,592
Other equipment 21,703,616 915.606 - 22 619,603
203,029,268 15,785,839 (5,370,127) 213,444,980

Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (27,839,296) (1,557,419) - (29,396,715)
Coaches (76,995,796) (8,028,998) (5,323,761) (79,701,033)

Office and computer

equipment (7,958,046) (908,177) (42,786) (8,823,437)
Other equipment (17.257.409) (1.466.446) - (18.723.855)
(130.050.547) 11.961.040 (5,366,547) (136.645.040)
Total 72.978.721 3.824.799 (3.580) 76,799,940
Capital assets, net $ 76166345 $ 3,824,799 $  (3580) $ 79987564

NOTE 5 - LINE OF CREDIT BORROWINGS

TARC entered into a direct borrowing agreement with Fifth Third Bank that established an unsecured line-
of-credit whereby TARC has available borrowings up to $6,000,000 through its maturity date on November
30, 2022. The interest rate is the SOFR rate plus 1.50% (3.00% at June 30, 2022). There was no
outstanding balance on the line of credit as of June 30, 2022.

NOTE 6 - LOUISVILLE METRO GOVERNMENT - MASS TRANSIT TRUST FUND

The majority of TARC’s funding is from an occupational tax levied on residents of Jefferson County,
Kentucky. A tax of 0.2% of taxable income is levied annually. The taxes are collected by the Revenue
Commission of the Louisville Metro Government and deposited into MTTF. TARC is authorized to draw
MTTF funds for operating and capital expenditures.

(Continued)

23.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 6 - LOUISVILLE METRO GOVERNMENT - MASS TRANSIT TRUST FUND (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, TARC recorded nonoperating revenues of $50,865,563 and $1,705,863
for capital assistance for operations and capital contributions from MTTF. TARC may receive authorization
to draw amounts in excess of originally authorized amounts in order to manage cash flow during the year.
Any such excess (or under) draws are recorded as a payable (receivable) to MTTF. At June 30, 2022,
TARC recorded a receivable due from MTTF for $382,073 for capital match.

NOTE 7 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

TARC entered into a contract for purchased transportation service which expires on December 10, 2024.
Purchased transportation services expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $13,264,507. TARC has
a contract that expires March 2023 with a vendor for the use of bus tires. The monthly charge to operations
is based on mileage placed on the tires. Tire usage expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was
$651,830.

TARC is dependent upon the availability of diesel fuel. Increases in the cost of fuel may, in the future,
adversely affect the profitability of TARC. There is no assurance that diesel fuel prices will not increase.
To alleviate possible fuel cost increases, TARC periodically enters into fixed unit cost fuel contracts with
fuel suppliers to purchase fuel at or below current market prices. In February 2021, TARC entered into an
agreement with a fuel supplier to provide diesel fuel to support the fleet operation for twenty-four (24)
months at a fixed price of $1.7887 per gallon of up to 2,000,000 gallons. The base amount of this contract
is for $7,152,800, which is based on the estimated annual fuel usage of TARC of 2,000,000 gallons
multiplied by the contractor’s bid excluding taxes. The contract not to exceed amount is $7,512,000, which
allows for a 5% increase, if needed, to support any potential increase in the last year of the term.

Expenditures financed by federal and state grants are subject to audit by the granting agencies. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined
at this time, although TARC expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

TARC is subject to various legal actions and general asserted and unasserted claims arising in the ordinary
course of its business. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties; the outcome of individual litigated matters
is not predictable with assurance. While it is reasonably possible that some of these foregoing matters may
be decided unfavorably to TARC within the next year, it is the opinion of management that the ultimate
liability, if any, with respect to these matters will not materially affect the financial position of TARC.

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN - COST
SHARING - CERS

General Information About the Pension and OPEB Plan: All full-time and eligible part-time employees
of TARC participate in County Employee Retirement System (CERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by the Kentucky Public Pensions Authority (KPPA), an agency
of the Commonwealth. Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.520, the Board of
Trustees (the Board) of KPPA administers CERS, Kentucky Employee Retirement System, and State Police
Retirement System. Although the assets of the systems are invested as a whole, each system’s assets are
used only for the payment of benefits to members of that plan, and a pro rata share of administrative costs.

(Continued)

24,



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN -
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

The plan provides for retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may
also be extended to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Under the provisions of
Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.701, the Board of KPPA also administers the Kentucky Retirement
Systems Insurance Fund. The statutes provide for a single insurance fund to provide group hospital and
medical benefits to retirees drawing a benefit from the three pension funds administered by KPPA. The
assets of the insurance fund are invested as a whole. KPPA and the Commonwealth have statutory
authority to determine Plan benefits and employer contributions.

KPPA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for CERS. The report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement
System, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, or it may be found at the
KPPA website at www.kyret.ky.gov.

Basis of Accounting: For purposes of measuring the net pension and other post-employment benefits
plan (OPEB) liabilities, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions
and OPEB, pension and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of CERS and additions
to/deductions from CERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Pension Benefits Provided: The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of
CERS-non-hazardous. It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all
benefit provisions:

Members whose participation began before 8/1/2004:
Age and Service Reguirement: Age 65 with at least one month of non-hazardous duty service credit, or at
any age with 27 or more years of service credit.

Benefit: If a member has at least 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.20% times final average
compensation times years of service depending on participation and retirement dates. Final
compensation is calculated by taking the average of the highest five (5) fiscal years of salary.
If the number of months of service credit during the five (5) year period is less than forty-eight
(48), one (1) or more additional fiscal years shall be used. If a member has less than 48 months
of service, the monthly benefit is the actuarial equivalent of two times the member's
contributions with interest.

Members whose participation began on or after 8/1/2004, but before 9/1/2008:
Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with at least one month of non-hazardous duty service credit, or at
any age with 27 or more years of service credit.

(Continued)

25.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN -
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

Benefit:

If a member has at least 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.00% multiplied by final
average compensation, multiplied by years of service. Final compensation is calculated by
taking the average of the highest five (5) fiscal years of salary. If the number of months of
service credit during the five (5) year period is less than forty-eight (48), one (1) or more
additional fiscal years shall be used. If a member has less than 48 months of service, the
monthly benefit is the actuarial equivalent of two times the member’s contributions with interest.

Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008 but before 1/1/2014:
Age and Service Reauirement. Age 65 with 60 months of non-hazardous duty service credit, or age 57 if

age plus service equals at least 87.

Benefit:

The monthly benefit is the following benefit factor based on service credit at retirement plus
2.00% for each year of service greater than 30 years, multiplied by final average compensation,
multiplied by years of service.

Service Credit Benefit Factor
10 years or less 1.10%
10+ - 20 years 1.30%
20+ - 26 years 1.50%
26+ - 30 years 1.75%

Final compensation is calculated by taking the average of the last (not highest) five (5) complete
fiscal years of salary. Each fiscal year used to determine final compensation must contain
twelve (12) months of service credit.

Members whose participation began on or after 1/1/2014:
Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with 60 months of non-hazardous duty service credit, or age 57 if

age plus service equals at least 87.

Benefit:

Each year that a member is an active contributing member to the System, the member
contributes 5.00% of creditable compensation, and the member's employer contributes 4.00%
of creditabie compensation, which is a portion of the total employer contribution, into a
hypothetical account. The hypothetical account will earn interest annually on both the member's
and employer's contribution at a minimum rate of 4.00%. If the System's geometric average
net investment return for the previous five years exceeds 4.00%, then the hypothetical account
will be credited with an additional amount of interest equal to 75.00% of the amount of the
return which exceeds 4.00%. All interest credits will be applied to the hypothetical account
balance on June 30 based on the account balance as of June 30 of the previous year. Upon
retirement the hypothetical account which includes member contributions, employer
contributions and interest credits can be withdrawn from the System as a lump sum or
annuitized into a single life annuity option.

(Continued)

26.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN — COST
SHARING - CERS (Continued)

OPEB Benefits Provided: The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of
CERS-non-hazardous. It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all
benefit provisions:

Insurance Tier 1: Participation began before 7/1/2003
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance

Benefit: The percentage of member premiums paid by the retirement system are dependent on the
number of years of service. Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in
service, non-duty death in service and surviving spouse of a retiree.

Insurance Tier 2: Participation began on or after 7/1/2003, but before 9/1/2008
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 120 months of service at retirement

Benefit: The system provides a monthly contribution subsidy of $10 for each year of earned service.
The monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. Benefits also include duty disability
retirements, duty death in service and non-duty death in service.

Insurance Tier 3: Participation began on or after 9/1/2008
Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 180 months of service at retirement

Benefit: The system provides a monthly contribution subsidy of $10 for each year of earned service.
The monthly contribution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. Benefits also include duty disability
retirements, duty death in service and non-duty death in service.

Contributions: TARC was required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate determined by Statute.
Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.545(33) normal contribution and past service contribution rates
shall be determined by the KPPA Board on the basis of an annual valuation last preceding July 1 of a new
biennium. The KPPA Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of
a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent actuarial valuation that amended contribution
rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with actuarial bases adopted by the
KPPA Board.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, participating employers contributed 26.95% (21.17% allocated to
pension and 5.78% allocated to OPEB) as set by KPPA, respectively, of each Non-hazardous employee's
creditable compensation. These percentages are inclusive of both pension and insurance payments for
employers. Administrative costs of KPPA are financed through employer contributions and investments
earnings.

TARC has met 100% of the contribution funding requirement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Total
current year contributions recognized by the Plan were $8,742,741 ($6,867,675 related to pension and
$1,875,067 related to OPEB) for the year ended June 30, 2022. The OPEB contributions amount does not
include the implicit subsidy reported in the amount of $707,521.

(Continued)

27.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN —
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

Members whose participation began before 9/1/2008:

Non-hazardous member contributions equal 5% of all creditable compensation. Interest paid on the
members’ accounts is currently 2.5%; and per statute shall not be less than 2.0%. Members are entitled
to a full refund of contributions with interest.

Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008:

Non-hazardous member contributions equal to 6% of all creditable compensation, with 5% being
credited to the member's account and 1% deposited to the KPPA 401(h) Account. Interest paid on the
members’ accounts will be set at 2.5%. Members are entitled to a full refund of contributions and
interest in their individual account, however, the 1% contributed to the insurance fund is non-refundable.

Members whose participation on or after 1/1/2014:

Non-hazardous member contributions equal to 6% of all creditable compensation, with 5% being credited
to the member's account and 1% deposited to the KPPA 401(h) Account. Members are entitled to a full
refund of contributions and interest on the member’s portion of the hypothetical account, however, the 1%
contributed to the insurance fund is non-refundable.

PENSION INFORMATION
Total Pension Liability: The total pension liability ("TPL"} was determined by an actuarial valuation as of

June 30, 2020. An expected TPL was determined at June 30, 2021 using standard roll-forward techniques.
The following actuarial assumptions were applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Price inflation: 2.30%
Salary increases: 3.30% to 10.30%, varying by service years, including inflation
Investment rate of return: 6.25%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

The mortality table used for active members is PUB-2010 General Mortality table, projected with the
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010. For healthy retired
members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the PUB-2010 General Mortality table based on
mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base year of 2019 (set back 3 years for males). For disabled members, the
mortality table used is the PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and
female rates, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base
year of 2010. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 — June 30, 2018.

(@) Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%, which did
not change from the prior year.

(Continued)

28.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN —
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

(b) Projected Cash Flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes
that the funds receive the required employer contributions each future year, as determined by the
current funding policy established in Statute as amended by House Bill 362 (passed in 2018) over
the remaining 30 years (closed) amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

(¢) Long-Term Rate of Return: The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of
the regular experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis,
performed for the period covering fiscal years 2013 through 2018 is outlined in a report dated April
12, 2019. However, the Board of KPPA has the authority to review the assumptions on a more
frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next scheduled experience study. The long-
term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The
ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset

allocation percentage.

(d) Municipal Bond Rate: The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate. Based
on the stated assumptions and the projection of cash flows as of each fiscal year ending, the non-
hazardous and hazardous pension plans’ fiduciary net position and future contributions were
separately projected and were each sufficient to finance all the future benefit payments of the
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of the projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability for each plan.

(e) Periods of Projected Benefit Payments: The long-term assumed rate of return was applied to all

periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

(i  Assumed Asset Allocation: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates

of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Growth:
US equity 21.75% 5.70%
Non-US equity 21.75 6.35
Private equity 10.00 9.70
Specialty credit/high yield 15.00 2.80
Liquidity:
Core bonds 10.00 0.00
Cash 1.50 -0.60
Diversifying strategies:
Real estate 10.00 5.40
Opportunistic 0.00 N/A
Real return 10.00 4.55
Total _100.00%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KPPA Board of

Trustees at 6.25% based on a blending of the factors described above.

(Continued)



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN —
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

(9) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net pension
liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents TARC's allocated portion of the net
pension liability ("NPL") of the System, calculated using the discount rate of 6.25%, as well as what
TARC's allocated portion of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.25%) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.25%) than the current

rate:
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.25%) (6.25%) (7.25%)
TARC'’s net position liability -
Non-hazardous $102,233,400 $ 79,711,204 $ 61,074,615

Employer's Portion of the Collective Net Pension Liability: TARC's proportionate share of the net
pension liability, as indicated in the prior table, is $79,711,204, or approximately 1.250%. The net pension
liability was distributed based on 2021 actual employer coniributions to the plan. TARC’s prior year
proportionate share of the net pension liability was $95,946,369, or approximately 1.251%.

Measurement Date: The total pension liability, net pension liability, and sensitivity information shown in
this report are based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2020. The total pension liability was rolled-
forward from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 using generally accepted
actuarial principles.

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: Since the prior measurement date, there were no changes
in assumptions and benefit terms.

Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the
collective net pension liability and the employer's reporting date.

Pension Expense: TARC was allocated pension benefit of $187,232 related to the CERS for the year
ended June 30, 2022.

(Continued)

30.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN —
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods
each year, the deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce
pension expense they are labeled as deferred inflows. If they will increase pension expense, they are
labeled deferred outflows. The amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with
no interest included in the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in
actuarial assumptions, if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and
inactive System members at the beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized
over a fixed five-year period. Deferred inflows and outflows as of the Measurement Date include:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience: $ 915,329 $ 773,651
Change of assumptions: 1,069,820 -
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions: 252 551 1,500,844
Differences between expected and actual investment
earning on plan investments: - 10,624,167
2,237,700 12,898,662
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date: 6.867.675 -
Total $ 9105375 $12,898.662

Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date
of $6,867,675 will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2023.
The remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources are amortized over two to four
years with remaining amortization as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2023 $ (2,293,242)
2024 (2,656,146)
2025 (2,384,633)
2026 (3.326,940)

$(10.660.962)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued CERS pension plan financial reports.

(Continued)

31.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN —
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

OPEB INFORMATION

Total OPEB Liability: The total other postemployment benefits plan (*OPEB”) liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. An expected total OPEB liability was determined at June 30,
2021 using standard roll-forward techniques. The following actuarial assumptions were applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Price inflation: 2.30%

Payroll growth rate: 2.00%

Salary increases: 3.30% to 10.30%, varying by service years, including inflation

Investment rate of return: 6.25%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Healthcare trend rates:

Pre-65: Initial trend starting at 6.30% at January 1, 2023 and gradually
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 13
years

Post-65: Initial trend starting at 6.30% at January 1, 2019 and gradually
decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 13
years

The mortality table used for active members is PUB-2010 General Mortality table, projected with the
ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base year of 2010. For healthy retired
members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the PUB-2010 General Mortality table based on
mortality experience from 2013-2018, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality
improvement scale using a base year of 2019 (set back 3 years for males). For disabled members, the
mortality table used is the PUB-2010 Disabled Mortality table, with a 4-year set-forward for both male and
female rates, projected with the ultimate rates from the MP-2014 mortality improvement scale using a base
year of 2010. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018.

Discount rate assumptions:

(a) Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.20%, which
decreased from the 5.34% discount rate used in the prior year.

(b) Projected Cash Flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed
the local employers and plan members would contribute the actuarially determined contribution
rate of projected compensation for each future year calculated in accordance with the current
funding policy.

(Continued)

32.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN —
COST SHARING - CERS (Continued)

(c) Long-Term Rate of Return: The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of
the regular experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis,
performed for the period covering fiscal years 2013 through 2018 is outlined in a report dated April
12, 2019. However, the Board of KPPA has the authority to review the assumptions on a more
frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next scheduled experience study. The long-
term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The
ranges are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset

allocation percentage.

(d) Municipal Bond Rate: The discount rate determination used a municipal bond rate of 1.92% as
reported in Fidelity Index’s “20 — Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 2021. Based on the
stated assumptions and the projection of cash flows as of each fiscal year ending, each plan’s
fiduciary net position and future contributions were projected separately and were sufficient to
finance the future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on insurance plan investments was applied to all periods of the projected benefit
payments paid from the plan. However, the cost associated with the implicit employer subsidy is
not currently being included in the calculation of the plan’s actuarially determined contributions, and
it is our understanding that any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the
plan’s trust. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments

associated with the implicit subsidy.

(e) Period of Projected Benefit Payments: Current assets, future contributions, and investment
earnings are projected to be sufficient to pay the projected benefit payments from the retirement
system. However, the cost associated with the implicit employer subsidy is not currently being
included in the calculation of the system’s actuarial determined contributions, and it is the actuary’s
understanding that any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the system’s
trust. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments

associated with the implicit subsidy.

() Assumed Asset Allocations: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real

rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Growth:
US equity 21.75% 5.70%
Non-US equity 21.75 6.35
Private equity 10.00 9.70
Specialty credit/high yield 15.00 2.80
Liquidity:
Core bonds 10.00 0.00
Cash 1.50 -0.60
Diversifying strategies:
Real estate 10.00 5.40
Opportunistic 0.00 N/A
Real return 10.00 4.55
Total _100.00%

(Continued)



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN - COST
SHARING - CERS (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KPPA Board
of Trustees at 6.25% based on a blending of the factors described above.

(g9) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability
to changes in the discount rate and changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.

The following presents TARC's allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the System, calculated
using the discount rate of 5.20%, as well as what TARC'’s allocated portion of the System’s net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(4.20%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.20%) than the current rate for non-hazardous:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.20%) (5.20%) (6.20%)
Net OPEB liability $ 32,854,506 $23,929,189 $16.604.412

The following presents TARC's allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the System, calculated using
the healthcare cost trend rate of percent, as well as what the TARC’s allocated portion of the System’s net
OPERB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate for non-hazardous:

Current Healthcare

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1% Increase
Net OPEB liability $17.226.172 $ 23,929,189 $ 32,019,835

Emplovyer's Portion of the Collective OPEB Liability: TARC's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability, as indicated in the prior table, is $23,929,189 or approximately 1.250%. The net OPEB liability was
distributed based on 2021 actual employer contributions to the plan. TARC's prior year proportionate share
of the net OPEB liability was $30,198,452, or approximately 1.251%.

Measurement Date: The total OPEB liability, net OPEB liability, and sensitivity information shown in this
report are based on an actuarial valuation date of June 30, 2020. The total OPEB liability was rolled-forward
from the valuation date to the plan’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, using generally accepted actuarial
principles.

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and
economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total OPEB liability have been updated as
follows:
¢ The discount rate used to calculate the total OPEB liability decreased from 5.34% to 5.20%.
e The assumed increase in future health care costs, or trend assumption, is reviewed on an annual
basis and was updated (i.e. increased) to better reflect more current expectations relating to
anticipated future increases in the medical costs.

Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the
collective net OPEB liability and the employer's reporting date.

(Continued)

34.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 8 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN - COST
SHARING - CERS (Continued)

OPEB Expense: TARC was allocated OPEB expense of $244,438 related to the CERS for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods
each year, the deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce
OPEB expense they are labeled as deferred inflows. If they will increase OPEB expense they are labeled
deferred outflows. The amortization of these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no
interest included in the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial
assumptions, if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive System
members at the beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed five-
year period. Deferred inflows and outflows as of the Measurement Date include:

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience: $ 3,762,872 $ 7,144,460
Change of assumptions: 6,344,083 22,251
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions: 74,378 946,390
Differences between expected and actual investment
earnings on plan investments: - 3,743,389
10,181,333 11,856,490
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date: 2,582,588 -
Total: $12.763.921 $11.856.490

Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date
of $2,582,588, which includes the implicit subsidy reported of $707,521 will be recognized as a reduction
of net OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2023. The remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources are amortized over two to four years with remaining amortization as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2023 $ 304,507
2024 (263,748)
2025 (294,703)
2026 (1.421.212)
Total: 1,675,157

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the OPEB plans' fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CERS OPEB plan financial reports.

(Continued)

35.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 9 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN — SINGLE EMPLOYER

Benefits Provided: At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 33

All full-time employees, who were employed by TARC prior to September 1, 1991, were eligible to
participate in the Plan beginning with the first full month of service. Benefits vested after five years of service
and are based on a monthly rate per year of service with monthly maximum benefits ranging from $710 to
$890 based on retirement or termination date. Benefit payments are established or may be amended by
the TARC Pension Board. The Plan also provides death and disability benefits. Effective September 1,
2019, the Plan elected no annual cost-of-living increases in monthly benefit payments for the Plan’s
calendar years 2020 and 2021, and no cost-of-living adjustments are expected for the Plan’s calendar years
2022 through 2025.

Contributions: TARC contributes to the Plan an amount needed to maintain the Plan in a sound condition
as determined periodically on the basis of an actuarial valuation. Contribution requirements are established
or may be amended by the TARC Pension Board. Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute
contribution requirements are the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation.

The actuarially determined contribution amount is based upon the sum of gross normal cost-plus funding
of past service costs over 10 years, less anticipated employee contributions. The actuarially determined
contribution amount for the 2021 Plan year was $261,750. The Plan recognized $276,040 of employer
contributions as of December 31, 2021. TARC recognized $276,040 of employer contributions during their
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. During their employment with TARC, eligible employees were required
to contribute an amount per hour that was agreed to in the bargaining agreement.

Employee contributions were determined using the following amounts per hour:

March 1990 to August 1991: $ 0.3754
September 1991 to December 2004: $ 0.4254

The final employee eligible to contribute into this Plan retired in 2004; therefore, there were no employee
contributions to the Plan after that time.

Net Pension Liability: TARC’s net pension liability was measured as of January 1, 2022 and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation was
determined used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Cost of living adjustment: 0.0%
Investment rate of return: - 7.0%

o Mortality rates were based on RP-2014 Generational Mortality Tables (Blue Collar) adjusted to
2006 with projected improvements after year 2006 under Projection Scale MP-2021 (male and
female scales).

(Continued)

36.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 9 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - SINGLE EMPLOYER (Continued)

e The actuarial valuation method was based on the Entry Age Normal Cost Method, with the
unfunded actuarial liability amortized over 10 years and a future liability changes amortized over
average expected future lifetime.

¢ The asset valuation method based on the market value adjusted for accruals.

¢ The provision for expenses based on the replacement of prior year's expenses paid from the trust.

Changes in_ Assumptions: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic
assumptions that affect the measurement of the total pension liability have been updated as described in
the summary of actuarial assumptions. The changes are noted below:

¢ The mortality table changed from the RP-2014 Generational Mortality Tables (Blue Collar) adjusted
to 2006 with projected mortality improvements after year 2006 under Projection Scale MP-2020
(male and female scales) to the RP-2014 Generational Mortality Tables (Blue Collar) adjusted to
2006 with projected mortality improvements after year 2006 under Projection Scale MP-2021 (male
and female scales).

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Assumed Asset Allocations: The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
Equities: 60% 4.2%
Fixed income: 40 2.8%

Total: 100%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. Based on
projected future contributions, benefit payments and investment returns, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that TARC would contribute the actuarially
determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the remaining 10-year amortization period of
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

(Continued)
37.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 9 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - SINGLE EMPLOYER (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability:

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary = Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) =(b)
Balances at January 1, 2021 $ 1,961,744 $1,054697 $ 907,047
Changes for the year:
Interest 126,942 - 126,942
Differences between expected and
actual experience (157,801) - (157,801)
Contributions — employer - 276,040 (276,040)
Net investment income - 165,433 (165,433)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (323,551) (323,551) -
Assumption changes 5,218 - 5218
Administrative expenses - (35,090) (35,090)
Net changes (349.192) 82,832 (432.024)
Balances at December 31, 2021 $ 1612552 $1137529 $ 475023

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the
net pension liability of TARC, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what TARC’s net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.00%)
or 1-percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
TARC's net pension liability: $ 545995 § 475,023 $ 409,938

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources: For the year
ended June 30, 2022, TARC recognized a pension benefit of $104,809 related to the Plan.

At June 30, 2022, TARC reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to the Plan from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual investment
earnings on plan investments: $ - $ 127751

Total s - $ 127,751

(Continued)
38.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 9 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN ~ SINGLE EMPLOYER (Continued)

The deferred outflows of resources resulting from the differences between projected and actual investment
earnings on Plan investments are amortized over a 5-year period with remaining amortization as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2023 $ (47,816)
2024 (34,850)
2025 (44,700)
2026 (28,402)
2027 28,017
Total: $ (127,751)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued audited pension plan financial reports. A copy of the separately issued
audit report may be requested from the Chief Financial Officer, 1000 W. Broadway, Louisville, KY 40203.

NOTE 10 - FIDUCIARY FUND INVESTMENTS

TARC's defined benefit pension plan (Plan) is presented as a fiduciary fund. The Plan is audited separately.
Information regarding the Plan is included in Note 9. The following disclosures relate to the Plan’s
investments.

Investment Policy: The Plan’s policy concerning the allocation of invested assets is established and
may be amended by the Pension Board. The Pension Board’s policy is to pursue an investment strategy
that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across collective trust funds and money
market funds. The Plan has reported compliance with this policy, which states that equity type investments
are permitted but are not to exceed 65% of the total fair value of investments. The policy prohibits the Plan
from holding unsecured investments in any public company exceeding 5% of the total market value of the
Plan’s investments. The policy also prohibits the Plan from holding investments in any one specific industry
exceeding 15% of the total market value of the Plan’s investments. The Plan’s target asset mix is currently
60% equity and 40% fixed income.

The following table presents the fair values of investments of the Plan’s fiduciary net position:

2021
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Fund $ 383,614
Vanguard 500 Index Fund 659,476
Federated Government Obligations Money Market Mutual Fund 97.013
Total: $ 1140103

The Plan's investments (including gains and losses on investments bought and sold, as well as held
during the year) appreciated in value by $146,962 in 2021.

(Continued)

39.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 10 — FIDUCIARY FUND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Rate of Return: For the year ended December 31, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 16.89%. The money-weighted
rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing
amounts actually invested.

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of
failure by a financial institution, TARC may not be able to recover the value of its deposits and investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of the financial institution. TARC's investment policy
dictates that all cash and investments maintained in any financial institution named as a depository be
collateralized and the collateral held in the name of TARC. There were no deposits with financial institutions
at December 31, 2021.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of investments will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. TARC's investment policy limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The investment policy
allows the Plan to invest in fixed income type securities to assure an appropriate balance in quality and
maturity consistent with current money market and economic conditions managing its exposure to fair value
losses arising from increasing interest rates. At December 31, 2021, the Federated Government Obligations
Money Market Mutual Fund had a weighted-average maturity of 28 days and the Vanguard Total Bond
Market Index Fund's portfolio had a weighted-average maturity of 8.8 years. The Vanguard 500 Index
Fund’s underlying investments have no maturity date.

Investments are made based upon prevailing market conditions at the time of the transaction. TARC
reviews its cash and investment needs in order to maintain adequate liquidity to meet its cash flow needs.
Assets categorized as short-term operating funds will be invested in investments maturing in 12 months or
less.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Investments are made under the 'prudent investor' standard to ensure that (a) due diligence is
exercised in accordance with State law, (b) any negative deviations are reported timely and (c) reasonable
action is taken to control any adverse developments. TARC's investment policy requires investment in
instruments authorized in KRS 66.480(a)-(d). The Federated Government Obligations Money Market
Mutual Fund received a rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. The Vanguard Total Bond Market Index
Fund and the Vanguard 500 Index Fund did not receive ratings as they are mutual funds.

Concentration of Credit Risk: TARC's investment policy requires diversification of the overall portfolio to
eliminate the risk of loss from an over-concentration of assets in a specific class of security, a specific
maturity, and/or a specific issuer.

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely
impact the fair value of an investment. TARC is not exposed to this risk and its investment policy does
not provide for investments in foreign currency denominated securities.

Fair Value Measurement: TARC categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

(Continued)

40.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/
JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 10 — FIDUCIARY FUND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2021:
¢ Publicly traded mutual funds of $1,043,090 are valued using prices quoted for identical assets in

active markets (Level 1 inputs);
o Money market mutual funds of $97,013 are valued using a matrix pricing mode! (Level 2 inputs).

41.



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



K44

‘9|qeoydde jou

|01Aed aahojdwe paloaod Jo abejusaiad e se Aljigel uoisuad jou sy} os ‘pouad seaA-ug) ay} Buunp jjoshed askojdwa palsaod ou sem alayl

‘pouad Buipodal g aunr s JeaA Juanbasqns auy U Jakodwa auy Aq pauodal alem JeaA ued yoes 1o} pajuasald sjunowe au |

%GG 8L %¥0°ZE %1262 %1€'6Z %0E 62 %L6 LY %9.'€G %bS 0L
I6CevLC S OIZZk8C¢ & TOocvelc & Eocvorc & 2 O0CcOlc & 2 OGP00CT § 2 I¥0Z06 §  TeoSlv S
280221 OEZIEET 00v'8zZl’1 €L9120'1 8¥9128 ZI0P0L1 169%50'1 625 LE1T
6176861 IZe0el) el ZEEt 00v 8211 €510t gv9128 LI0¥%0L1 269%501
(z60'6L2) (165'Z8¢€) (9e€'602) (2z8'001) (sz6'6¥1) 6zv'eee (08e'6Y) 2€8'28
190¥ 68) Wi vv) GOy Sr) 7699 (192795] 209712 2oL 2E) {060°GE)
(500'662) (vov'ses) (952'629) (029'609) (269'859) (6zz'cLy) (506'v117) (1s5'¢c2e)
LpO'LLL (gze'61) SoL‘LL 9es°221 £89°c $00°zZEL 651'601 £eP'S9L
gec'gor  § 66l $ 099'ser S yG6e'ecy ¢ 0S8lor $ 962'665 L TANG TANE ov0'9lz  §
V2oV 8 TGvGllv 5  TOOCOBE & 2 DOOGOPC § 2 OVEvl6c & 2 CEGPOEC S VPLIOBT § GG CIOT §
IPISP0'S ¥ oy SV SI1 Y £09208°€ G08'G8F € 8¥8vI6 ¢ EESV0EC ¥rI1961
(£20'€89) (z.2'282) (682'Z1E) (262'9.8) (8LO°LLS) (G1£'0L9) (68.'2¥E) (Z61'6¥E)
S00662) w0¥'8c] 95776Z9) 029609 Z69'85G] 6ectiv) [GO6 71! (185°¢¢8)
1896 169'96¢ ¥ee'ls (6v8'8%) (L1s') (821102 (gg50'02) 812's
(zro'aLl) L1'zel) 016 ¥¥8'0¢ (068°021) (s10'681) (ge8'ss) (L08°261)
106°z2e  $ ¥5'982 % giv'oLe  $ 828'05z ¢ 980'02Z $ 150'¢6L % 900's¥L  $ v6'9zL  $
¥102 G102 9102 Z102 102 102 020 120

a[npayog 03 SA)ON

Agern) uoisuad jej03 ey jo abejuasiad

e se uopisod jau Aienpy ueld
Buipua ‘Aypigel uoisuad DU $,.04VL
Buipus ‘uogised jau Aseonpy uejd
Bujuuibaq ‘uonisod 1eu Aleionpy ueld

uomisod 1au Aleonpy
ueyd ul aBueyo 18N
asuadxa anlessIuIWpY
sjuswied pjeuag
aLLIOoUI JUBWIISAAUI JoN
suopnquuoo JaAojdwg
uonisod jou Aleionpy uelg

Buipus ‘Ajnge) uoisuad jelo
Buuubaq ‘Aljgel uoisuad [ejo

Anjigel) uoisuad |e10} Ui 9bueys 1oN
sjuawied Weuag
suondwnsse jo sabueyn
2ouauadxa [enjoe
pue pajadxa uUsamleq seoualsyid
1sa18)u)
Aiqger) uoisuad fejo)

1202 ‘L€ Jaquaoa( papus Jeah ueld
NV1d ANJWNFHILIH AIANINY .STIAOTdINT
— ALITIEVIT NOISN3d L3N S.0dV1 NI S3ONVHI 40 3T1NJ3HIS
NOILYWHOANI AMVYLNIWITddNS a34IND3Y
(LNIFWNYIA0D OHLIN ALNNOD NOSHI44ar
/ATIASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdINOD V)
ALID H3AIY 40 ALIMOHLNV LISNVYL



R%12

‘a|qeondde Jou si (joshed aakojdws palanod jo ebejusased e se Ayjigel uoisuad Jou ay) os ‘pouad JeaA-us) ay) Buunp jjoiAed aakojdwa paisnod ou sem asay L

%09°0% %¥r8e
TGEOLE T § gL O0LE §
[ 74 AR BIv6e61 3
259v96¢ (ZZA:TA4
W1'¥89) (28 ove)
(ZZ17€0) (959'6%)
(960'886) (266'€06)
658'91€ 628'clE
0000 $ 000'62
965 010G 3 AZAS TR
96.76€9 965919G
(00z'8.L4) (6v8'0.G)
(9607886) (Z66'S06)
v.2'2L $62°01
(229'22¢) (9e+'292)
6ZL'0L1 506'0€Z
oLy 8 688'86¢  $
fXir4 €102

‘pouad Bupuodal g aunr sJead Jusnbasqns sy Ui JoAojdwa ay) Aq papodal atam Jeah ued yoes Jo pajuasaid sjunowe ayj

8|npeyas o) SIION

Aupnqey uoisuad [e)0} Jo abejuadsad e se uonisod Jou Aiejonpl) uejd

Buipus ‘Ayiger| uoisuad 18U S,OHVL
Buipua ‘uonisod jau Aierdonpy ueld
Bujuuibaq ‘uonisod jou Aieionpyy ue|d

uonisod Jau Aseronpy uejd ul abueyo 8N
asuadxa sAljensIuIWpPY
sjuawAed Jyausg
3WOIUI JUSWISIAUL }ON
suonNquUIuoed JaAoidw3
uopisod jau Aiejanpy) ueid

Buipua ‘Ayfigel| uoisuad jejoL
Buuibaq ‘Ayqey uoisuad |ejo |

Apqer uoisuad [ejo} ul sbueyo 18N
sjuawAed Jyauag
suoiidwnsse ul sabueyn
aousyadxa |enjoe
pue pajadxe usamjaq ssouasayiq
SWLI9) Jyauaq ul sabueyyn
1saJ9)y|
Aunqen voisuad [ejoL

1202 ‘L€ Jaquiaoa( papus Jeaf ueld
NV1d LNJWFHILIH IANTNY .SFIAO0TdNS

= ALITIEVIT NOISN3d 13N S.O4VL NI SIONVYHO 40 31NA3HOS

NOILYIWHOAINI AdVLNINITddNS a3dIND3Y
(LNINNYIA0D O¥1IN ALNNOD NOSHI443r
/ATTASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdINOD V)
ALID H3AIE 40 ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL



R 44

Aouaioyap UoNQUIUOD [BnuuY

0¥0'9/¢ uonnquiuoo
pauluLelep Ajelen)oe
8y} 0} UOHE[3J Ul SUOCINGLIUCY)

052192 $ UOHNQUIUOD paulLLIRIep AjleHen}oy

{9) 3 - @Birell 5 - $ (@06cc $ (9z61ZDs (B0cH § (06wl § (sseox8)
8ce'8or Zl6 6Ly 099'8EP 7G6 8P 0S8'19% 9GZ 565 821'68¢
le€'89v$  zZieBlY$  LbZ'ozy$  pSe'eev ¢ Ive/EP$  oge'cer ¢ OLL'plZ ¢

102 (X4 910¢ 7102 8102 6102 0202 1202

1.Z0Z ‘L€ Jaquisdaq papus Jeak ue|d

NV1d LNINTHILIH GIANTNY SIIAO0THING
— SNOILNFIYINOD S.04dV.1 40 31NA3HIS
NOILYINHOLNI AYVYLNINTTddNS d3HIND3Y
(LNIWNY3A0O OYLIW ALNNOD NOSHIJ43ar
/ATHASINOT 40 LINN LNINOJINOD V)
ALID ¥3AIE 4O ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL



R4

(soleos gjews) pue sjlew) Lzoz-dN 31e2s uoioalold Jspun goog Jeah Jaye

sjuswanoiduwi Ayjepow psjosiold yim 9oz o3 pajsnipe (1ejjoD anig) ssjqe L ANfelol jeuonelsuas v10z-dy :Areyop
"SJuBIIUD MaU 0} paso|d si uejd ay) pue palijal ale salelaua( e se ‘a|igeddde 10N :aby Juswaiey

%002 uiniay jo aley JuswsaAl|

‘SJUBJIIUD MBU 0} paso|d S| Uuejd ay} pue paljal ale salleldlauaq |fe se ‘gjgesldde JoN ‘sasealou| lejeg

%000 ‘uoneu|

sasuadxa panJiooe ss3| anjeA Jayiep] ‘POYISN UoleNn|eA Jossy

sieaf poudd uonezipowy Buluieway

lejjoq |eAe ‘POYISIN uolleZILoWY

poyaw }s09 |ewsou abe Anug ‘POYIBIN 1S0D) |elen)oy

zezoz ‘| Menuep ‘2l uolleniea

“Jeal [eosy S OYVL 0 SYIUOW XIS 1811} 8y} SI Yyoiym ‘Jeakh Jepusjed s ueld uoisuad ay) Jo syjuow xis 1se|
ay) Buunp apel Ajuo ale ueld ucisuad ayj 0] SUOIINGIUOD |[B SB ‘suoRnNqLIueD JeaA Jepugied s,.ueld uotsuad ay) 0} saibe suonnquIuoD Jeak [Basy SOV

‘a|qediidde jou si |joiAed e@aiojdws-palsnod Jo abejuadlad e se uoinguuod paullslap Ajjeuenioe
ayj o} uoijejal ui ued uoisuad ayi Aq paziubooal suoinNquIuod Jo slunowe os ‘pousd Jeah-ua) sy Buunp jjoihed saiojdwa paIsa0d ou sem a1ay |

9|NpayIS 03 SION

009Z2c § 9ccoct $ (ss99xa) AouaIolap uoNgLIUOD)
00005 000'6€C uoINQUIUOD pauILLIBIap
Alleuenyoe ay) 0} UoIE[SI Ul SUONQLIUOD
009'22¢ $ oze'6se $ LORNQUIUOD pauILLIBlep Ajlenenoy
f4Xi14 g10c

120z ‘L€ 18quisoa( papus Jesh ue|d

NVY1d LINFJWIHILIY A3ANINY STFIA0TdNS
— SNOILNGIALNOD 8.0Vl 40 ITNAIHIS
NOILVYINHOANI AMVLNINI1ddNS a3dINd3N
(LNTFNNHIA0D OH13WN ALNNOD NOSYHIJJar
/ATHASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdNOD V)
ALID H3AAIY 40 ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL



oy

%Ll

N

N

%2061 %LL6  (%99°€) %E0°L %Sy'el  (%br0) %028l  %¥S'LL %689l

€10C ¥10C SlL0C 9102 210¢ 810¢ 610C 0coc Lcoc

sosuadxe JUBLLISAUI JO 18U ‘UIN}a)
10 8jel payblam-AsuUow [enuuy

1202 ‘L€ Jequisoaq papus Jeak ueld

NV1d LNIWIHILTH AIANTAY .STFAO0TdNT
— NdN13Y 40 S31vY A31HOIFM-AINOIN 40 3TNAIHOS
NOILYINHOANI AMVLININT1ddNS a3dind3ayd
(LNIFWNYIA0D O¥LIW ALNNOD NOSHIJ4ar
ATIASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdNOD V)
ALID U3AIY 4O ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL



Ly

‘suoisiaoid Jysuaq pajepdn asay} Buisn paulwa}ap SBM 8L0Z 'O SUNr 1O Se d1 Syl "uaIpjiyd aaiy}
J0j Aed abeiane o 9,52 J0 ‘UIp|IYD oM Joy Aed abelaAe Jo %60 ‘PlIYD Buo Jo) Aed abeiaAe JO 9,06 01 S1el Aed jeuly s JagLUaLW aL} JO %0 L WO} PISEIOUI US3( SABY UJP|IYD Juspuadap
Buiiains o3 pred sjyauaq ‘esnods BuiAiANs B aABY JoU S80p Jaquuaw ay) §| ‘Aed sbelane staquswl ay) Jo %G/ O} Aed Jo 8)Bl [BUY SJaqUIBLL BU} JO 9%GZ WOl pasealoul Usaq aAey
siaquiaw paseadap Jo sasnods ay) 0} pied sjyauag "AINp JO aul| 3} Ul SIP OUYM SISGUISW SAIOR 10} SUoIsiaaLd Jauaqg ayl pajepdn yoiym ‘pajoBUS SEM Gg| |1 9SNOH ‘U0ISSas aAne|siBa)
810zg 2y} Buunp ‘Janamol ‘suonduinsse jelenoe Ul sabueyd ou usag sAeY a1ay) ‘alep Juswiainseaw Joud ay) aouIS 610z OF 81.0¢ WO} SWIS] Jjaudyg pue SUCHdWnssSy Ul Sebuey)

€002 ‘I Anr 0} soud sjuedipiued swesaq oym soaIN101 SIBIPSN-UOU 10} swnjwaid pled Jakojdwa uo peo| %60 © 0) %g'S B woly pabueyd sem xe] oej|iped ay) jo
Joedw pawnsse sy} pue ‘saaayal g9 abe-1sod Joj s1500 [BDIpawW Ay} Ul Sasea.oul 31NNy pajedionue o} Bunejal suoneadxa Jusung alow joayal Jajaq o} (paseauoul ‘9') pajepdn sem pue
SISEq [ENUUE UE UO pamalaal s| ‘uondwinsse puaJ} Jo 'SISOD a1ed Yjeay ainin Ul 3SBaIoUl PALUNSSE Y} (S1aquislu SNOPJBZEY JO) %0G PUE SISUDW SNOPIBZEY-UOU 10} %Z O} %0 Wol)
pajepdn sem AInp Jo aul| ay) Ui INDJ0 0} pawnsse saljigesip 4o juadlad ay} :Apnls eausiiadx3 102 ayl uo paseq pajepdn asam Ajfepow pue ‘|emeIpyIm ‘AlIGESIP ‘JUBWIRIINRI JO SB1R)
jenuue !Apnig sousuadx3 810z au} uo paseq pajepdn alem sasealoul Alees [enuue ‘ajep jusiiainseaw joud ay} aaulS 1020z 01 61.0¢ WOI) SWIS] Jousg pue suondunssy ul sebuey)

"$elBIDYBUA] JO JAQUINU [[BUIS B 10) PBSBaIOU| 2J9M SH2UDg "pPadnpal sem asnods suy
10 abeusewal uodn Ainful pajejal-ANp B 0} aNp SEm Yjeap asoym Jaguuswl e Jo asnods Buiaains e o) Juawied Ajyuow ay] -Auigen uoisuad {e10) 8y uo 1oedwi |euslew e sABY JouU pIp
yoiym ‘pajepdn azom swus) Jsuaq Jeaamoy ‘suondunsse ul sabueyo cu a1om aiay} ‘alep Juawainseaw Joud 3y} adUIS 11202 OF 020¢ WO SWIS] Jjausg pue SUoNdwnssy Ul Ssbuey)

"Z220Z 0} 120z woui sabueyo ou a1am a1ay] 810N

"S[Ge[IRAR S) LONBLLIOUI YOIUM 10}
s1eak asoy} Joj uojeuuolul Buiuasald st HYyL ‘Palidwod si pusly JBRA-0 ) [N} B [IUN JOABMOH ‘SIESA (] 10§ UDIJBULIOUL MOYS 0} Judwaiinbal ay; ajensnjjl o} pajuasaid si ajnpayos siyL

-Joud JesA U0 paluIN20o Jey) pua-leak ay) JO Se paulIalep alam Jeah |eoasy Yyoea o) pajuasald sjunowe sy

%108'99 %896 65 %¢£05°SS %S2E S %CPS S %Ly 0G %PL8' LY %82E' LS Aunaey
uoisuad |e10} ayj jo abeyuadiad

e se uonisod Jau Asepnpy ueld
%908'LEL %18¥'E8L %092'50C %09.4'8€C %696°¢rT %L09'¥.L2 %6%. 662 %216°0S2 [lo1Aed pasonod
s)1 uo abejuaoiad e se Ajjigel|

uoisuad jau sy} Jo uoipodoid s,04V 1

2/5'669'0€ $  882'¥00°0E $ SLE'EPYLE $  0Z9'680'2€ $  9G1'852'Z7€ §  8€EL'0z8'EE $  1E6'800'2Z¢ §  TL6'89L°1E § flo1Aed paianod s,04V1

000'00%'0r §  2G6'ZS0'GS $  €0L'0PSY9 $  LLL'PLO'9L $  1L00'Z6S'6L $  198'0/8'C6 $  69€'0P6'S6 §  ¥0ZLILGL $ uoisuad jou ay) Jo B1eys
ajeuoiodoid s,08V1

%0621 %082 %l1EL %60€"L %20€°L %02’ L %1621 %0521 Aungey
uoisuad Jau ay} jo uojuodoud SOV

$10¢

8102 6102 0202 1202

[{e/
ped
[=
™~
™|
-
(o]
o™
™
(]
N

Zzoz ‘og sunp
SNOQYVYZVYH-NON - WALSAS LNIWIHILTIH STIAOTHINT ALNNOD
— ALINIAVIT NOISN3d 13N FHL 40 IHVYHS F1VYNOILHOdOHd S.QdVL 40 31NA3HIS
NOILYINHOANI AHVLNIW31ddNS a3dinD3y
(LNIFWNYIA0D O¥LIWN ALNNOD NOSYHII43r
/ATUASINOT 40 LINN LNINOINOD V)
ALID H3AAIE 40 ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL



8Y

‘gousuadxa Joayal Aj@jeInooe alow o) paiepdn alom AJIQESIP pUB [EMBIPUNM ‘JUBLUSIIS] JO
sajel pawnsse ay) (1A) pue ‘pajonpuod s1 uonebisaaul aausuadxa Jxau ayl usym uiebe pemainai aq (i uibiew 1ey) pue sajel Ajjepow ul Juswaaoiduw ainny ajqissod 1oy sajqe} AljeHow
Jua1no ay} ul uiBiew awos S| 213y WBWaRL Aljigesip ja)e pouad ayl Joj pasn si (sajew 1oy sieak ¢ 3oeq 19s) £10Z 0} 99 9e2S yum pajoasfoid ajqe] AneHow pajgesiq pauiquio)
0002-dy 9y} 'ssequiaw pajqesip Jo4 "(sajewa) 1o} Jeak | Xoeq 19s) £1.0Z 0) 94 2[eds yym pajasioid 3|qeL AyjeHopy pauiqwo) 000Z-dy Ul st pasn a|qe} Allerow sy} ‘salieouausq
pue sisquiaw paijas Ayyeay 104 “(sefewsy 1o} %0E PUR s8jewW 10} %0G Aq paydiinw) €10z 01 99 81eos yim pajosfosd ajqel AjfeHop pauiquiod 000Z-dy S! SJaquiew dAnoe Joj
pasn a|qe) Aujenow au) (A) ‘%00 0} %0S ¥ woly paonpas sem uolduinsse ywmoib jjoiAed (n) ‘%G2°0 0} %00 | Wolj paonpai sem uopjeul abem jo ajes pawnsse ay () ‘%52°¢ 0) %05°C
IOl paonpal Sem UONBJUL O 3le) pawnsse auy) (1) ‘%0G°20) %G/ / WOI) PaSEaldsp SEM LIRS JO Sje) JUSW)SSAUI pawnsse ay} (1) (paquasap se pajepdn uasq aaey Ajiqe) uoisuad
|10} Y} JO JUSWIINSEDW 3y 1aaye jey) suondwnsse o1woueos pue sydelbolusp ay) ‘ajep juswainsealw Joud ay) aouIsS 910z 01 G| 0¢ WOoJJ SUID] Jjouag pue suondwnssy ul Sebuey)

*110Z 0} 910z WOy sabueyd ou s19m 818y :B10N
"%00°Z 0} %00+ Woy paanpai sem uonduwinsse ywmolb jjoifed (i) pue ‘%0¢Z 0) %S52'E

LUOJ) PAONP2J SEM UONEeHUI JO dled pawnsse ay) (1) '%G5Z°9 0} %S/ WO0J) PESEI0ap SEM UINiaJ JO SJ.) JUSWISSAL! pawnsse ay) () jpaquosep se pajepdn uaag aney Ayigey uoisuad
[B10} Y] JO JUSWAINSESW Y} Jo3je 18y} suondwinsse 21wouooa pue dydeibowap ayj ‘ajep Juswainseaus Joud ay) 89UlS 8 10Z OF Z10¢ WoJJ SWIS] Jijouag PUE SUORJWNSSY Ul SODUBLD)

Zzoz ‘og aunp
SNOQYVZVYH-NON - W3LSAS LNIJWIHILIH S3IAOTdING ALNNOD
— ALITIFGVIT NOISN3d L3N JHL 40 FHVHS JLVYNOILHOdOHd S.0dVL 40 371NA3IHOS
NOILYWHOANI AHVLNIWITddNS a3diND3Y
(LNIFWNYIA09 O¥LIN ALNNOD NOSYHIJ43ar
/ATUASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdWOD V)
ALID H3IAIY 40 ALIHOHLNY LISNVAHL



‘alqejieAe Si UCHELLIONI YDIUM 10}
s1eak asouy) 1o} uonewuoul Bunuasad si YL ‘Padwod sI pual) 1esA-01 (N} E [UN JSAAMOH "SIBSA (] J0J UOIJELLIOMUI MOYS O} Juawsalinbal ay) ajensnyll o} pajuasald s 3Npayos syl

%082°2L %02vZL %056} %Livvl %SGL0'9L %8¥E6L %S9€°61 %l62'le lloiAed paisnoa sy Jo
abejusolad e se suonnquuon

882'F00'0E $ GlE'EPY'LE § 0296802 $ OG1'862'2¢ $§ BEE'0ZB'EE $  1€6'800'Z¢ $  2.G'89L°1E $  922'962'ZES llosAed pasdA0D S.OHVL

%001 %001 %001 %001 %001 %001 %001 %001L uoisuad

10} UolINQUIUOd pannbal Ajuoniels Jo
abejuaniad e se suoiNquIuod S, DYV

= TS T < T < T T T - T S T = T (s$99x3) Aduaioyep uonNgUIUGD [enuuy
(019'6z28°¢) (092'506°€) (20G'9L¥ ) (6290¢L ¥) (€02 9l¥ S) (956 ¢61 9) cr6 1LG1 9 619989 uonnquuod paiinbal Aluoiniels
aU} 0] UOHE[aJ Ul SUOHNQLIUO)
019'6z8'¢ $§ 00zZ'G06'c $ Z0S'OLP'Y $ 62902L% $ €OZOMWF'S $ 9S6'Z6L'9 $§  Z¥BLSL'9 $§  G29°/98'0 $ uonnguILeY paJnbai Aluoiniels
G10¢c 9l0C L10¢ [X}4 610¢ 0¢0¢ 1¢0¢ (4414

220z ‘og sunr
SNOAYUVZYH-NON — INJLSAS INJWIHI1TY STTFAOTdINT ALNNOD
— SNOILNEIYLINOD S.24dV1 40 3TNAIHOS
NOILYINHOANI AYYLNINITddNS A3HIND3IA
(LNIWNYIAOD OHL3IN ALNNOD NOSHI443ar
/ATIIASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdIWOD V)
ALID HAAK 4O ALIMOHLNV LISNVHL



"suolsin0ad Jysuaq perepdn asay) Buisn paulLLIBIEp SEM g1.0Z ‘0F SUN[ JO SE Td1 dYL "Uualpjiyd a3iy}
1o} Aed afelane Jo 9,6/ 10 ‘UaIpiyD om} Jos Aed abelane Jo %G9 ‘PIYD suo Joj Aed abeiane J0 %05 0] ajel Aed [eul S JqWSW BU) JO %0} WO PESEBIOUI USaq SABY UBIP(IYO Juspuadap
Buniains o) pled spyauaq ‘ssnods BuiAns e 9ABY 10U S30P Jaquisw ay §) “Aed sbeseae sJaquisw oy} J0 %G/ O} Aed Jo 9)el [eul SJSqLUSLL BU} JO %GZ WO POSEaIoUl usaq aney
SJaquIaW paseadap Jo sasnods ay) o} pied sjyauag "ANp 0 aul| By} Ul 3P OUM SISQUIBLU SAIDE 10} SUoISIA0Id Jsuaq ay) palepdn youm ‘pRJJBRUS SEM Gg| |liIF 9SNOH ‘uoIssas aale|siBa)
8102 aY) Buunp ‘1onamoy suodwinsse [euenjoe ul sabueyo ou usaq aaey asey] ‘Slep Juswanseaw Joud ayy 20uIS TGL0Z OF 810¢ WOJj SWia) Jjousg pue suoldunssy Ul sebuey)

£00Z ‘1 AN 01 Joud sjuedipiped awedaq oym $a121 IESIPIN-UCU 104 swniwaid pied Jjakojdwa uo peo| %6°0 B 03 %9°E B woy) pabueys sem xe] oejjipeD ay} Jo
oedw; pawnsse sy} pue ‘saaial gg abe-}sod Joj $1S09 [eDIpaLW By} Ul sasealou aimny pajedionue o} Buljejal suoleoadxa JusLund aiow Jos)al JaNeq 0) (pasealsul ‘31) pajepdn sem pue
SISEQ |ENUUE UB U0 PIMIIASI S| ‘UONAWNSSE PUSJ] JO ‘S]S09 31ED Y)|Bay aJnjnj U} 9SBaIoU| PAWNSSE 9y} ‘SI9quiawW SNOpJezey Joj %0S PUB SI9quidWl SNOPJBZEY-LOoU 10} %Z 0] %0 Wol}
pajepdn sem AJnp Jo aul| 8Y} Ul JNO20 O} PALINSSE SaiiIqesIp 0 Juaolad ay) ‘Apnig @ousuiadxg L0 &Yy Uo paseq pajepdn aiem Ajjedouws pue ‘[emelpyim ‘ANjigesip ‘Juawiaiial (o sajel
lenuue :Apnig @ousadxg gLOZ U} Lo paseq pajepdn alem sasealdul AIB|ES [enuue ‘9)ep juswainseaw Joud ay) a0uls (0202 0) 610¢ WOJ SUIS] JIJauag PUE SUONJWNSSY U] Sebueqd

6102 12quIa9ad Ul PaLIN230 YoIum ‘834 Jainsu}
yljeaH, pue xe] JgjipeD, sy} Jo [eads. sy woJy sBuiaes pajedionue 1vsys) 0} pajepdn usag SeY UOHEULIOUI [RLRNIOR S} PUE ‘S}S00 |eIpalU 8y} Ul saseasoul ainny pajedpnue o} Bunelal
suoije)oadxs JuaLIND SJ10W 3|I8) J9NIS] 0] (PISE3IOUl '9'l) pajepdn Sem PUE SISE] [ENUUE UE L0 PaMaIASI Si ‘UOIIdLUNSSE pUSJ} 10 ‘S)S00 81ed Uj|eay aInjny Uj 3SeaIou| POLINSSe Y} ‘% be'g
0} %89°G WO} paseaIosp Ajjiqel] §34O (210} 34 8)e|ndjed 0} pasn ajes JUNOISIP 3y} ‘Sep Jusiainseal loud ay) 2UIS :T1Z0Z O 020z WO SWIS] Jyauag PUE SUONJNSSY Ul SSbUeyD

*S}S09 [EOIPBLU DY} Ul SISB3IU|
aunjny pajedionue o} Bunefas suoneladxe jusund alow Joayal Japeq o} (paseasoul “a't) palepdn sem ‘uondunsse pual) J0 ‘S}S03 1.3 Yjeay ainjnj Ul 9SeaIOU| PAWNSSE 3U) PUB ‘%0Z°S
0} %¥bE°S WoJj paseasoap Ajjiqel g3do 110} sy} 91gjndjed 0} Pasn ).l JUNCOSIp alf} ‘elep Juswiainsesw joud ayl aUIS :ZZ20g OF | g0g WOJj SWIS] Jjousg PUE SUONJWINSSy U] SebUeq)

"ajqelleAe S| UOREBLUIOUI JO SIeak
01 huUN SIeaA [BOSY SINJNy U) SNPaYDSs SIY} 0} Pappe aq |Im siea A Ajpaoroel pajuasald aq 0} palinbal Jou S| S[NPayYds SiL} Ul UOIRLLIOJUI SU} ‘JOASMOH 9|Npayos Jeak-g| B sl sIyL

"Jold JeaA suo PalINIDo JBy) Pud JEaA aU) JO SB PaUiLIDIOP aJom Jeak |BosY Yoea Joj pajudsald sjunowe ay|

%00¥ S %229'LS %8EF 09 %0L9°'1G %L06'29 Aungey 9340 18103 aul jo sbejusosed e se
uonisod jau Aleionpy ueld

%000°28 %6280 %5699 %¥Pe v6 %ETE'SL lloshed pasenod sy jo  afiejusosed e se
Aunger] 9340 1eu auy) jo uoodoid s,04vL
029'680'2¢ ¢  9G1'86.'ZE ¢  8££'0Z8'CE $ L£6'800'2E $ z.6'892°'1€ $ llosAed pa1snod 8,08V L

LTV'ELE'9Z $  9.2'202'€C § 189'v02'2C $ Z6¥'86L'0¢ $ 681'626'€Z $ Angen 9340 1eu sy
10 aseys ajeuoodold s, 04V L

%60€"1 %L0EL %0281 %162} %021 snopJezey-uoN
1| g3d0 Jeu ay) jo uoodoid 8,04V
3102 6102 0202 1202 202

¢eoe ‘og sunp
SNOQYVZVYH-NON — W3 LSAS INIWFHILIH STIAOCTdNT ALNNOD
— ALITIGVIT 83d0 13N 3HL 40 FHVYHS F1VNOILYOdOdd S.04VL 40 IINA3IHOS
NOILYWHOANI AHVANINT1ddNS d3HINO3H
(LNTFWNY3A0D OHLIW ALNNOD NOSH3443ar
ATIASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdNOD V)
ALID H3AIE 40 ALIMOHLNV LISNVYL



1S

"a|qe|ieAR SI UOIIBLLLIOLUI UDIYM Jo) siesh asoy} Joy uoeullojul Bunussaid
sl DHVL ‘peldwiod si pual) JesA-gl Ny B [1uUNn ‘JaAsmo 'sleak Q| Jo} uonewloul moys o) Juswalinbal ay) ajexsn|| o} pajussald si s|npayds siy |

%llOV %E6L°S %CLlLY %9LLY %E18°S

951'86.2¢ $ 8ce’0c8'ee $§  1€6'800C€ $  TiS89L°le §  9CT9sCTE $

[I0JAed palanod s)

10 abejuaniad e se suoingUuo)

jloiAed pa1anod SOV 1

%001 %001 %001 %001 %001 uoisuad 1oy uoiNgUIU0D palinbal Ajuojnjels
10 abejusoiad e se suoinguUIuod S, HHVL

- s - g - g - g - g (ss90x8) Asuaidyep uoNQUIUOD |BNUUY

(8¥Tees't) (9e¥'96.'1L) (e8e’22s't) (£Z92°/1571) (£90°628"1)

svz'zes’'t ¢ 9ev'ess’t $ Ts8ezes’t $ 0 49TLLS'L $ 190'G48'L  $

8102 610¢c [A\r4 L20¢C ¢c0e

uonnqLiuoo palnbal ALoyniels
ay} 0} ucne|al Ul SUSHNGLIIUOD

uoljnquuod palinbal Ajuolniels

geoe ‘og sunp
SNOQYVYZYH-NON — INJLSAS LNIWFHILFY .SFIAO0TdINT ALNNOD
— SNOILNEIY1NOD 9340 SOVl 40 ITNA3IHIS
NOILVINJOANI AdVLNINITddNS 3N
(LNIWNYIA0O OHLIAW ALNNOD NOSHIH4Ar
/ATIASINOT 40 LINN LNINOdINOD V)
ALID H3AAIY 40 ALIMOHLNY LISNVHL



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
BUDGET TO ACTUAL
Year ended June 30, 2022

Actual to Actual
GAAP Amounts
Budget Actual Differences GAAP Basis
Operating revenues
Passenger transportation $ 5,562,597 $ 5,252,950 $ - $ 5,252,950
Special fares 1,796,605 1,553,207 - 1,553,207
Advertising 624,000 644,167 - 644,167
Interest - 69,433 - 69,433
Charter service 150,000 - - -
Other revenue 183,300 136,111 - 136,111
Recoveries 65,000 206.697 - 206.697
Total operating revenues 8,381,502 7,862,565 - 7,862,565
Operating expenditures
Labor 32,000,848 30,701,505 - 30,701,505
Fringe benefits 31,734,057 28,888,796 - 28,888,796
Plus: pension adjustments - - (292,041) (292,041)
Plus: OPEB adjustments - - 244 438 244 438
Total labor, fringe benefits
pension and OPEB 63,734,905 59,590,301 (47,603) 59,542,698
Services 5,639,222 5,705,776 - 5,705,776
Development costs 426,467 693,423 - 693,423
Materials and supplies 7,458,185 6,370,931 - 6,370,931
Utilities 1,016,796 1,035,703 - 1,035,703
Casualty and insurance 2,736,426 2,928,897 - 2,928,897
Miscellaneous 621,820 467,683 - 467,683
Rentals and purchase
transportation 18,740,930 13,264,507 - 13,264,507
Interest 7,860 7,858 - 7,858
Depreciation 12,194,557 11,961,040 - 11,961,040
Loss on disposal - 3.580 - 3.580
Total operating expenditures 112,577 168 102,029,699 (47.603) 101,982,096
Operating loss before subsidies (104,195,666) (94,167,134) 47,603 (94,119,531)
Subsidies
Mass Transit Trust Fund and interest 54,094,106 52,571,426 - 52,571,426
Federal Transit Administration
and Pass-Through entities 60,227,257 38,059,566 - 38,059,566
KIPDA and other 1,553,856 7.267.319 - 7.267.319
Total subsidies 115.875.219 97.898.311 - 97.898.311
Change in net position $ 11679553 § 3731177 $ 47,603 $ 3,778.780

The operating budget for 2022, as shown above, represents the originally adopted budget for TARC. No
amendments were made to the budget during the year ended June 30, 2022.

52.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year ended June 30, 2022

Assistance
Listing Grant Number for Federal
Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Expenditures
Department of Transportations
Federal Transit Administration
Direct Programs:
Federal Transit Cluster:
Capital and Operating Assistance
Formula Grants 20.507 $ 3,643,374
COVID 19 - Formula Grants — CARES Act 20.507 4,486,908
COVID 19 — Formula Grants — CRRSA Act 20.507 9,740,507
Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 20.526 19.462.512
Total Federal Transit Cluster 37.333.301
Transit Services Cluster:
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and
Individuals with Disabilities 20.513 439,588
Job Access and Reverse Commute
Program (JARC) 20.516 263,637
Total Transit Services Cluster 703.225
Public Transportation Research,
Technical Assistance and Training 20.514 23.040
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 38.059.566

The foliowing shows subrecipient activity for the year:

Assistance
Listing
Number Amount
20.507 $ 117,084
20.513 439,688
Total subrecipient activity $ 556672

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

53.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal financial
assistance programs received by the Transit Authority of River City (TARC). TARC's reporting entity is
defined in Note 1 to the audited financial statements.

NOTE 2 — BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award
activity of TARC under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). TARC has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of TARC, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net assets, or cash flows of TARC.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following, as applicable, either the Cost Principles for State and Local Governments or the
cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

54.



Crowe

Crowe LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Transit Authority of River City
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of Transit Authority of River City (TARC), a component unit of Louisville/Jefferson County Metro
Government, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021 and the fiduciary activities as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
TARC's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated .

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered TARC's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of TARC’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of TARC's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

(Continued)

56.



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether TARC's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
<> 2022

56.



Crowe

Crowe LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM,;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Transit Authority of River City
Louisville, Kentucky

Report on Compliance for Major Federal Program
Opinion on Major Federal Program

We have audited Transit Authority of River City’'s (TARC) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on TARC’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. TARC’s major federal
program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, TARC complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of TARC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of TARC’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to TARC's
federal programs.

57.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on TARC’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about TARC’s compliance
with the requirements of the major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we

e exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding TARC’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

¢ obtain an understanding of TARC'’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of TARC’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

58.



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of TARC as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2022, the fiduciary activities of TARC as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise TARC's basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated , which contained an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform
Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Crowe LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
<> 2022

59.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2022

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency identified not None
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X Reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency identified not None
considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X Reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for
major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance with
2CFR200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listing Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster Number
Total Federal Transit Cluster consisting of:
20.507 Formula Grants
20.526 Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

60.



TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF RIVER CITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF LOUISVILLE/JEFFERSON COUNTY METRO GOVERNMENT)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended June 30, 2022

SECTION 2 — FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THAT ARE REQUIRED TO BE
REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 2022.

SECTION 3 — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 2022.

61.



MEMORANDUM

To: TARC Board of Directors

From: TARC Finance Committee

Date: September 27, 2022

Re: Resolution 2022 — 24 Fiscal Year 2022 TARC Audited Financial Statement Report

The TARC Finance Committee met on September 20, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. for their monthly meeting. During
this meeting TARC’s Audit Firm Crowe, LLC participated to discuss TARC’s Audited Financial Statement
report.

The Audited Financial Statement report was reviewed by the members of the Finance Committee, which
includes the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Vice Chair, the Chief Financial Officer, who serves as the
Secretary/Treasurer of the Board, and the Executive Director during this meeting. Specific review included
the: Management Discussion and Analysis; Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position; Statement of Cash Flows; and the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Net Position — Budget to Actual. TARC received a clean opinion with no material
misstatements.

The Finance Committee would like to recommend accepting the Audited Financial Statement report as
presented. Each of you should have received a copy in your packet to review and we are available for any
questions you may have concerning the audited financial statements.



RESOLUTION 2022 - 24
Approval of the FY 2022 TARC Audited Financial Statement report as

presented

A resolution approving the FY 2022 TARC Audited Financial Statement report as presented.
WHEREAS, the Finance Committee met and discussed in detail on September 20, 2022, and
WHEREAS, TARC received a clean opinion; and

WHEREAS, TARC had no material misstatements; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River City that
the Board accepts the FY 2022 TARC Audited Financial Statement report as presented.

ADOPTED THIS 27™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022

John Launius
Chair of the Board of Directors



MEMORANDUM

To: John Launius, Chair of TARC Board of Directors

From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director

Date: September 27, 2022

Re: Resolution 2022-25 Award of Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with

Disabilities Section 5310 Program Funds

TARC in its role as the designated recipient for the Louisville Urbanized Area for Enhanced Mobility
of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) funds undertakes a process to award
these federal formula funds to subrecipients. TARC has undertaken a competitive selection and
award process for the past eight years for these funds. This federal fiscal year there are
$1,279,884 from the Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2022 apportionment and there are $154,062 from
the FFY 2021 American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021 for a total of $1,433,946 (see details in
the Appendix).

TARC has consistently followed a competitive selection process to solicit project applications and
award the funds ensuring that the process is fair and allows for full and open competition. The
deadline for applications for this funding was July 21, 2022. Eleven applicants applied for funds.
The applications were evaluated on August 9, 2022 by an independent, impartial Selection Review
Committee comprised of five community members with no material interest in any of the proposed
projects. They used evaluation criteria previously developed by TARC and the Regional Mobility
Council.

A total of ten applicants were awarded funding. Regarding the projects that qualified in the Section
5310 “Traditional” category, the Selection Review Committee recommended fully funding six of
the projects and partially funding two of the projects, resulting in an award of $782,152 or 55
percent of the total, which meets the federal requirement that at least 55 percent of Section 5310
funds must be awarded in the “Traditional” category. Regarding the projects that qualified in the
Section 5310 “Other” category, the Selection Review Committee recommended partially funding
two of the projects, resulting in an award of $651,794 in “Other” funds.

The ten successful applicants will become subrecipients of the federal funds. The subrecipients
provide local matching funds. For the FFY 2022 funds, capital purchases will have a 20% local
match, and operating expenses will have a 50% local match. For the FFY 2021 ARP funds, no local
match is required. A total of $1,433,946 of federal Section 5310 funds is recommended for award
at this time. The attached resolution seeks authority for the Executive Director to award the
Section 5310 funds to the successful applicants and enter into a subrecipient agreement as outlined
in the resolution and detailed in the Appendix.

Please call me at 502-561-5100 with any questions.



RESOLUTION 2022-25
Award of Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Section 5310 funds

A resolution approving the award of Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Section 5310 program funds as set out below, and authorizing the Executive Director to enter into
grant subrecipient agreements with the recommended subrecipients of these funds.

WHEREAS, TARC has been named the Designated Recipient of Enhanced Mobility of Seniors
and Individuals with Disabilities Section 5310 funds for the Louisville Urbanized Area by the
Governors of the States of Kentucky and Indiana, and;

WHEREAS, in its role as Designated Recipient, TARC has conducted a competitive selection
process, and;

WHEREAS, each project recommended for funding was derived from priorities set forth in the
Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan for the KIPDA Region, and;

WHEREAS, each project was selected for funding through a process that ensured open
competition, and;

WHEREAS, an impartial Selection Review Committee scored all eligible applications using
evaluation criteria established by TARC in conjunction with the Regional Mobility Council;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River
City that the federal funds from the Federal Fiscal Year 2022 apportionment for Enhanced Mobility
of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Section 56310, and from the Federal Fiscal Year 2021
ARP apportionment for Section 5310, which were allocated to the Louisville Urbanized Area in the
total amount of $1,433,946, be distributed as follows:

e $68,494 to Blue River Services, Inc. for the Floyd County Urbanized Area Transportation
Project

e $62,400 to Christian Care Communities for the Old Louisville Area Seniors Transportation
Project

o $2,400 to Dayspring for the Wheelchair Van Maintenance Project

e $109,600 to Dreams with Wings for the Dreams with Wings Transportation Project

e $215,178 to Harbor House of Louisville, Inc. for the Improve Mobility for Seniors and
Individuals with Disabilities Project

e $85,280 to Lifespring Health Systems for the Individuals with Disabilities Transportation
Project

e $103,600 to Rauch, Inc. for the Accessible Vehicle Project

e $135,200 to Zoom Group Inc. for the Zoom Group Transportation Project

o $408,594 to Transit Authority of River City for the Suburban Work Trips for Paratransit
Customers Outside of the ADA Service Area Project

e $243,200 to Ztrip (WHC SAF, LLC, dba Ztrip) the Wheelchair Van Project

TARC Board of Directors Meeting September 2022



The Executive Director/CEO is hereby authorized to enter into agreements with B
Services, Inc., Christian Care Communities, Dayspring, Dreams with Wings; Harbor
Louisville, Inc.; Lifespring Health Systems; Rauch, Inc.; Zoom Group Inc., and Ztrip for the work
outlined in their project applications.

The Executive Director/CEO is authorized to file and execute a grant application on behalf of the
Transit Authority of River City with the U.S. Department of Transportation to fund the projects listed
above.

ADOPTED THIS 27TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022

John Launius
Chair of the Board of Directors

TARC Board of Directors Meeting September 2022



APPENDIX

Section 5310 “Traditional” funds

Eligible subrecipients for Section 5310 “Traditional” funds include private nonprofit organizations;
or state or local governmental authorities that are approved by a state to coordinate services for
seniors and individuals with disabilities, when it is certified that there are no nonprofit
organizations readily available in the area to provide the service. TARC is not eligible for an award
of Section 5310 “Traditional” funds, since many nonprofit organizations that provide service are
available in our urbanized area. However, TARC is eligible for funds in the Section 5310 “Other”
category.

Federal law requires that at least 55% of the normal Section 5310 funds awarded must go to
Section 5310 “Traditional” projects. “Traditional” projects are capital transportation projects
(including but not limited to vehicle replacement, fleet expansion, and capital maintenance) that
are designed and planned to meet the specific needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities
when public transportation is insufficient, unavailable, or inappropriate.

Exception:

In 2021, the Federal Fiscal Year 2021 ARP (American Rescue Plan Act of 2021) created a special
apportionment of Section 5310 funds that are exempt from the requirement that at least 55% of
the funds awarded must go to Section 5310 “Traditional” projects. The FTA prefers that all of
these ARP Section 5310 funds be used for Operating Assistance in the “Other” category.

Section 5310 “Other” funds

Eligible subrecipients for Section 5310 “Other” funds include: state or local governmental
authorities; private nonprofit organizations; and for-profit operators of public transportation.

Up to 45% of the Section 5310 funds that are awarded may be awarded in the “Other” category
(including capital expenses and operating expenses) for public transportation projects designed
and planned to meet the specific needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities. These projects
must: (1) exceed the ADA minimum requirements; or (2) improve access to fixed-route service
and decrease reliance by individuals with disabilities on ADA-complementary paratransit service;
or (3) provide alternatives to public transportation that assist seniors and individuals with
disabilities with transportation when public transportation is insufficient, inappropriate, or
unavailable.

Exception:

In 2021, the Federal Fiscal Year 2021 ARP (American Rescue Plan Act of 2021) created a special
apportionment of Section 5310 funds that are exempt from the requirement that at least 55% of
the funds awarded must go to Section 5310 “Traditional” projects. The FTA prefers that all of
these ARP Section 5310 funds be used for Operating Assistance in the “Other” category.
Therefore, all of those funds may be awarded in the “Other” category.



Funds available

The amount of NORMAL federal Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Section 5310 funds available for award through TARC's current competitive selection process is
$1,279,884 from the Federal Fiscal Year 2022 apportionment. There were no funds remaining
from the normal Section 5310 apportionment from Federal Fiscal Year 2021.

The total $1,279,884 is available for award for projects in the Section 5310 “Traditional” category.

The amount of NORMAL Section 5310 funds available for award for projects in the Section 5310
“Other” category cannot exceed 45% of the total amount NORMAL Section 5310 funds actually
awarded for all projects.

In addition, there are extra Section 5310 formula funds available for award this year in the amount
of $154,062 from the Federal Fiscal Year 2021 ARP (American Rescue Plan Act of 2021)
apportionment. The FTA prefers that all of those ARP Section 5310 funds be used for Operating
Assistance in the “Other” category. One hundred percent of those funds may be awarded in the
“Other” category.

The total of all Section 5310 funds (NORMAL plus ARP) available for award this year is
$1,433,946.

All subrecipients of NORMAL Section 5310 federal funds are providing local matching funds.
(Capital purchases have a 20% local match and Operating expenses have a 50% local match.)
However, Federal legislation for COVID relief stipulates that no local match is required for the
ARP Section 5310 funds.

Funds awarded

The total amount of NORMAL “Traditional” Section 5310 funds that were available for award this
year was $1,279,884. The total amount of “Traditional” funds requests received was $904,149.
The total amount of “Traditional” funds that the Selection Review Committee recommended for
award is $782,152, which is 55 percent of the of the total NORMAL Section 5310 funds
(“Traditional” plus “Other”) that were awarded this time. That meets the federal requirement that
at least 55 percent of the NORMAL funds must be awarded in the “Traditional” category.

The total amount of all Section 5310 “Other” funds that were available for award was $497,732.
The total amount of “Other” funds requests received was $1,125,470. The total amount of Section
5310 “Other” funds that the Selection Review Committee recommended for award is $497,732.
That is 45 percent of the total NORMAL Section 5310 funds (“Traditional” plus “Other”) that were
awarded this time. That meets the federal requirement that no more than 45 percent of the
NORMAL funds can be awarded in the “Other” category.

The total amount of ARP Section 5310 funds available for award this year was $154,062. The
FTA preferred that 100 percent of those ARP funds be awarded for Operating Assistance in the
“Other” category. The amount of ARP Section 5310 funds that the Selection Review Committee
recommended for award for Operating Assistance in the “Other” category is $154,062, which is
all of the total ARP Section 5310 funds that were available this time. The ARP funds were awarded
at 100 federal share with zero local match.

TARC Board of Directors Meeting September 2022



The total amount of Section 5310 funds (NORMAL plus ARP) recommended for award this time
is $1,433,946 of the $1,433,946 available. This uses up all of the federal Section 5310 funds
available for award at this time. There will be no leftover Section 5310 funds to be carried over
to next year.

Funding recommendations for Section 5310 “Traditional” projects:

$68,494 to Blue River Services, Inc. for the Floyd County Urbanized Area Transportation Project
to purchase one (1) ADA-Accessible Full Size van with Enhanced HVAC and All-Wheel-Drive.
The project will provide transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities in the urbanized
area of Floyd County, Indiana.

(Federal funds = $68,494 Local match = $17,124 Total project value = $85,618 )

$62,400 to Christian Care Communities for the Old Louisville Area Seniors Transportation Project
to purchase one (1) ADA-Accessible Full Size van with Enhanced HVAC. The project will provide
transportation for seniors in the Old Louisville area of Louisville, Kentucky.

(Federal funds = $62,400 Local match = $15,600 Total project value = $78,000 )

$2,400 to Dayspring for the Wheelchair Van Maintenance Project to purchase Preventive
Maintenance for its wheelchair-accessible van. The project will enable Dayspring to provide for
individuals with disabilities in the Louisville Urbanized Area.

(Federal funds = $2,400 Local match = $600 Total project value = $3,000 )

$109,600 to Dreams with Wings for the Dreams with Wings Transportation project to purchase
one (1) ADA-Accessible Full Size van with Enhanced HVAC and Extended Warranty; and one (1)
non-ADA-accessible Standard 12-passenger Van with Extended Warranty. The project will
provide fixed route and on-demand transportation service in Jefferson County for individuals with
disabilities to get to day training programs, jobs, and medical appointments.

(Federal funds = $109,600 Local match = $27,400 Total project value = $137,000 )

$215,178 to Harbor House of Louisville, Inc. for the Improve Mobility for Seniors and Individuals
with Disabilities project to purchase: two (2) ADA-Accessible Full-Size vans with Enhanced
HVAC; (1) non-ADA-accessible Standard Minivan; six (6) vehicle wrap graphics; six (6) in-vehicle
cameras; and six (6) dispatch radios. The project will provide transportation for individuals with
developmental and intellectual disabilities to and from Harbor House, to medical appointments,
and other necessary trips.

(Federal funds = $215,178 Local match = $53,795 Total project value = $268,973 )

$85,280 to Lifespring Health Systems for the Individuals with Disabilities Transportation Project
to purchase: two (2) non-ADA-accessible Standard Minivans. The project will provide
transportation for individuals with disabilities to appointments, shopping trips, activities of daily
living, and group outings.

(Federal funds = $85,280 Local match = $21,320 Total project value = $106,600 )

$103,600 to Rauch, Inc. for the Accessible Vehicle Project to purchase: one (1) ADA-accessible

Minivan; and one (1) non-ADA-accessible Standard Minivan with All-Wheel-Drive. The project
will

TARC Board of Directors Meeting September 2022



transport individuals with disabilities to work, doctor appointments, shopping, community
activities, entertainment, dining, and volunteer opportunities.
(Federal funds = $103,600 Local match = $25,900 Total project value = $129,500 )

$135,200 to Zoom Group, Inc. for the Zoom Group Transportation Project to purchase: one (1)
ADA-accessible Full-Size vans with Enhanced HVAC; and one (1) ADA-accessible Full-Size vans
with Enhanced HVAC and All-Wheel Drive; two (2 ) GPS Lockbox (Wayfinder) systems; and four
(4) signage graphics. The project will provide transportation for seniors and individuals with
disabilities to jobs, job training, job interviews, classes, and medical and mental health
appointments. The project will serve approximately 250 physically and developmentally disabled
adults, many of whom would be otherwise unable to acquire and maintain employment and
access the community.

(Federal funds = $135,200 Local match = $33,800 Total project value = $169,000 )

Funding recommendations for Section 5310 “Other” projects:

$408,594 to Transit Authority of River City for the Suburban Work Trips for Paratransit Customers
Outside of the ADA Service Area Project for Operating Assistance to continue paratransit work
trips for people with disabilities who either live outside the ADA service area or who work outside
the ADA service area.

(Federal funds = $408,594 Local match = $254,532  Total project value = $663,126 )

$243,200 to Ztrip (WHC SAF, LLC, dba Ztrip) for the Wheelchair Van Project to purchase four
(4) ADA-accessible Minivans to provide shared ride service as part of the existing TARC3
program.

(Federal funds = $243,200 Local match = $60,800  Total project value = $304,000 )

(See summary in tables below.)

TARC Board of Directors Meeting September 2022



Summary of recommendations for funding:

Section 5310 “Traditional” Funds (dollars) FFY 22

. Federal Local
Agency Project Share Match Total
Blue River Floyd County Urbanized
Services, Inc. Area Transportation 68,494 17,124 85,618
Christian Care Old Louisville Area Seniors
Communities Transportation 62,400 15,600 78,000
. Wheelchair Van
Dayspring Maintenance 2,400 600 3,000
Dreams with Dreams with Wings
Wings Transportation 109,600 27,400 137,000
Improve Mobility for Seniors
Harbor House of | ' ndividuals with 215,178 53,795 | 268,973
Louisville, Inc. e
Disabilities
Lifespring Health | Individuals with Disabilities
Systems Transportation 85,280 21,320 106,600
Rauch, Inc. Accessible Vehicle 103,600 25,900 129,500
Zoom Group, Inc. | Zoom Group Transportation 135,200 33,800 169,000
Section 5310 “Other” Funds (dollars) FFY 22 (& ARP FFY 21)
. Federal Local
Agency Project Share Match Total
Suburban Work Trips for
Transit Authority Paratransit Customers
of River City Outside of the ADA Service 408,594 254,532 | 663,126
Area
Ztrip (WHC SAF, .
LLC, dba Ztrip) Wheelchair Van 243,200 60,800 304,000
TARC Board of Directors Meeting September 2022



MEMORANDUM

To: John Launius, Chair of TARC Board of Directors
From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director
Date: September 27, 2022

Re: Resolution 2021- 08 Amendment No. 1 to Contract 2020658 Banking and Financial
Services — Change Order: ExpertAP

Board Resolution 2021-08 entered TARC into contract with Fifth Third Bank for banking services
on April 27, 2021 following a procurement for said services. Fifth Third’s original proposal,
contained several service options including one for accounts payable (AP), called ‘Expert AP’ This
service allows for the digitization of invoices and the decision and facilitation of payments to
Customer's third-party service providers and suppliers (collectively, "Suppliers") using multiple
payment methods through a single payment site. Customers can authorize Fifth Third Bank and
its processors to act on its behalf as reasonably necessary to provide the Expert AP Service,
including without limitation, the facilitation of electronic payments and remittances and
communications with Suppliers by phone, mail or email.

TARC is now ready and prepared to exercise this option as part of process improvement.
Implementation of Expert AP will allow TARC to send a file of all operations payments to Fifth
Third who will issue payments to suppliers via credit card, automated clearing house (ACH), or
check on behalf of TARC. This process will eliminate tedious work for Finance staff such as
printing checks, preparing payments for mailing, and filing check copies as those tasks will now
be managed by Fifth Third. Most important, payments will be issued electronically eliminating the
time and effort needed to acquire physical signatures. In addition to this, Expert AP will mitigate
fraud risks to TARC and result in potential revenue generation as TARC will receive a certain
percentage of all payments made via credit card and on fees generated from ACH payments.

The attached resolution seeks authority for the Executive Director to amend Contract 20200658
Banking and Financial Services with Fifth Third Bank. The estimated change order value is $4,400
annually with a one-time implementation fee of $3,500 for a total not to exceed amount of $21,100
for the remaining term of the contract.

Please call me at 561-5100 if you have any questions. Thank you.



RESOLUTION 2021-08 AMENDMENT NO. 1 BANKING AND
FINANCIAL SERVICES: CHANGE ORDER EXPERT AP SERVICE

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to execute a change order to Contract
20200658 to add the Expert AP services into the contract:

WHEREAS, a competitive solicitation was issued; TARC received a proposal from Fifth Third
Bank and it was deemed responsive, and a contract was awarded; and

WHEREAS, TARC seeks a change order to the banking and financial service contract to add an
optional service of Expert AP; and

WHEREAS, the proposal and contract included options for the services called Expert AP; and

WHEREAS, the services will cost $4,400 each year, with a one-time implementation fee of
$3,500: and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of
River City that:

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract 20200658
for a change order for Expert AP based on an additional not-to-exceed amount of $21,100.

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022

John Launius, Chair of the Board of Directors



MEMORANDUM

To: John Launius, Chair of TARC Board of Directors
From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director
Date: September 27, 2022

Re: Resolution 2022-09 Amendment No. 1 — Ellipse Hosting and Support Services:
Ellipse File Interfacing Development For Use With Fifth Third Expert AP
Implementation

On July 24, 2017, the Board approved Resolution 2017-30 allowing TARC to enter into a contract
with the company COSOL (then called AddOns) to provide hosting, application services,
consulting for ongoing training and process optimization for our Enterprise Resource Planning
software application, Ellipse. Subsequent resolutions included 2021-03 and 2021-25, which
included services for calendar year 2021; and 2022-09 for services in calendar year 2022,

As part of ongoing process improvements, TARC is now ready and prepared to exercise a service
option originally contained in the Fifth Third proposal for Banking and Financial Services (RFP
2020658), named Expert AP (see Memorandum for Resolution 2021-08).

As part of the development and implementation associated with the Fifth Third Expert AP project,
specific payables files will need to be developed for integration/interfacing. This file will contain a
list of payments to be made to suppliers for specific invoices and must be compiled in a specific
format to be approved by Fifth Third. A statement of work for development of this service was
provided by COSOL in the amount of $3,700.00.

This resolution requests that the Board approve the one-time additional services fee with COSOL
increasing the not to exceed (NTE) amount of $264,567 to $268,267 for the 2022 calendar year.

Please call me at 561-5100 if you have any questions. Thank you.



RESOLUTION 2022-09 Amendment No. 1
Ellipse Hosting and Support for Expert AP File Interface

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to approve one-time additional services to
COSOL related to file integration/interfacing for the Fifth Third Expert AP implementation:

WHEREAS, TARC seeks a change order to the COSOL contract to add the optional service of
file integration/interfacing for Expert AP; and

WHEREAS, TARC received a statement of work from COSOL, which was deemed acceptable;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River
City that:

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to approve this one-time statement of work for file
integration in the amount not to exceed $3,700.00.

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022

John Launius, Chair of the Board of Directors



MEMORANDUM

To: John Launius, Chair of TARC Board of Directors
From: Carrie Butler, Executive Director
Date: September 27, 2022

Re: Resolution 2021 - 43.2 Second Amendment Management Consulting Services —
Indefinite Delivery-Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ)

In November 2021, Resolution 2021-43 authorized the Executive Director to enter into an
agreement with TransPro Consulting for Management Consulting Professional Services under an
Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) services contract. The purpose of the services is for
TARC to receive consulting support to examine internal operations with a goal to develop a high
functioning and effective leadership team to move the agency forward and thus better serve our
riders and community as a whole. A first amendment was awarded in April (Resolution 2021-43.1)
for a performance appraisal process that is linked to the agency annual strategic plan.

This amendment to Resolution 2021-43 is to further support the work of the annual strategic plan
by adding four tasks to the contract. The first task is to incorporate a review of TARC’s paratransit
services and develop a performance measurement and monitoring system focused on paratransit
service, including a current state assessment, a customer engagement process, and a peer
review. The second task is to engage and facilitate the Board of Directors in an executive retreat
that will seek to facilitate discussion amongst the Board members and projects for the upcoming
year. The third task is to engage the senior management team for continued work on the annual
strategic plan and incorporate new feedback from the Board into the annual process. The fourth
task is to do fixed-route, paratransit and community surveys, which consist of developing the
survey and then initially surveying to establish a satisfaction baseline. After establishing the
baseline, then an additional survey will be conducted after TARC has the opportunity to implement
feedback from the initial survey.

Attached is a resolution requesting the Board of Directors to amend the contract with TransPro to
add these three additional tasks for Fiscal Year 2022 for the following amounts for a total of
$291,318:

Task 1- Work Order 5 Paratransit Assessment: $74,695

Task 2 — Work Order 6 Board of Directors Retreat: $9,500
Task 3 —Work Order 7 Management Team Workshop: $ 6,812
Task 4 — Work Order 8 Surveys: $291,318

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you.



RESOLUTION 2021- 43.2
Management Consulting Professional Services
Amendment 2

A Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to amend the Trans Pro contract for Management
Consulting Professional Services for a not-to-exceed amount of $291,318.

WHEREAS, TARC seeks a management consulting professional services to provide and assist
TARC with its transit organizational management, strategic planning and technical capacity; and,

WHEREAS, a competitive solicitation, request for proposal was issued in July 2021 with
responses received from interested firms on September 8, 2021; and,

WHEREAS, TARC entered into an Indefinite Delivery-Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) contract with
TransPro for an Initial Term of one (1) year with an option of two (2) additional one-year terms
with TransPro Consulting based upon a not-to-exceed amount of $100,000; and,

WHEREAS, TARC desires to add tasks to the contract for continued work on the performance
management and strategic planning efforts for a not-to-exceed amount of $291,318; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of River
City that:

The Executive Director is hereby authorized to amend the contract with TransPro to allow

additional tasks to be performed as set out herein at a not-to-exceed amount for these additional
tasks of $291,318.

ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2022

John Launius, Chair of the Board of Directors



